
 

AMENDED AGENDA 
City of Lucas 

City Council Meeting 
August 6, 2020 

7:00 PM 
Video Conference 

665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas 
 
Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Lucas City Council will be held on Thursday, August 6, 2020 at 7:00 pm by 
video conference at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002-7651 at which time the following 
agenda will be discussed. As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may 
convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City Attorney on any 
item on the agenda at any time during the meeting. 

 
On March 16, 2020 Governor Abbott suspended some provisions of the Open Meetings Act in 
response to the COVID-19 emergency. To comply with Government Abbott’s latest Executive 
Order and to practice safe distancing, Lucas City Council meetings will not be open to on-site 
visitors. In the interim, City Council meetings will be available through Zoom Webinar from your 
computer or smartphone. To join the meeting, go to 
https://zoom.us/s/95534828374?pwd=ZkJ5cTZkVWNEL3o0WFNCQXBjQ0RvZz09  and enter 
your name and e-mail address. You may also join by phone: 1-346-248-7799. When prompted, 
enter the meeting ID: 955 3482 8374 and password: 712285. 
 
If the public desires to speak during a specific agenda item, they must email 
shenderson@lucastexas.us by 4:30 pm on the day of the meeting. The email must contain the 
person’s name, address, phone number, and the agenda item(s) for which comments will be made. 
 
Call to Order 

 

 

• Roll Call 
• Determination of Quorum 
• Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones 
• Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Citizen Input 

 

 

1. Citizen Input 
 

  

https://zoom.us/s/95534828374?pwd=ZkJ5cTZkVWNEL3o0WFNCQXBjQ0RvZz09
https://zoom.us/s/95534828374?pwd=ZkJ5cTZkVWNEL3o0WFNCQXBjQ0RvZz09
mailto:shenderson@lucastexas.us
mailto:shenderson@lucastexas.us


Community Interest 
 

Pursuant to Section 5510415 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may report on the following items: 
1)expression of thanks, congratulations or condolences; 2) information about holiday schedules; 3) recognition of 
individuals; 4) reminders about upcoming City Council events; 5) information about community events; and 6) 
announcements involving imminent threat to public health and safety. 
 
2. Items of Community Interest 
 

Consent Agenda 
 

All items listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and are recommended to the City Council for a single 
vote approval. If discussion is desired, an item may be removed from the consent agenda for a separate vote. 
 
3. Consent Agenda:  
 

A. Approval of the minutes of the July 16, 2020 City Council meeting.    
 
B. Adopt Ordinance 2020-08-00917 ordering a General Election to be held on November 

3, 2020, for the purpose of electing two (2) City Councilmembers for Seat No. 1 and 
Seat No. 2. 

 
C. Adopt Ordinance 2020-08-00918 ordering a Special Election to be held on November 

3, 2020, for the purpose of submitting a proposition to the qualified voters of the City 
for the reauthorization of the one-half of one-percent sales and use tax to continue 
providing revenue for maintenance and repair of municipal streets. 

 
D. Approval of the City of Lucas Investment Report for quarter ending June 30, 2020. 
 
E. Approval of the First Amended and Restated Interlocal Cooperation Agreement 

between the City of Lucas and Seis Lagos Utility District. 
    

Regular Agenda 
 

 

4. Consider the request by Sue Blankenship on behalf of Inspiration to amend Article 2, 
Section 2.5 and Exhibit C of the approved Settlement and Release Agreement for the 
Inspiration development, to include increasing the lot count to 1,680 and decreasing the lot 
size from 10,000 square feet to 8,400 square feet for interior lots only, and to remove the 
requirement to either place restricted access gates or cul-de-sac at the northern and eastern 
entrances to the subdivision for a parcel of land located in the City of Lucas extraterritorial 
jurisdiction, Abstract A0799 Orpha Shelby Survey, Tract 3, being 74.327 acres. (Development 
Services Director Joe Hilbourn) 

 
5. Consider revocation from the Texas Emergency Services Retirement System (“TESRS”) 

effective December 31, 2020.  (Lucas Volunteer Firefighter Pension Board Chairman Larry Bowman,  
 Councilmember Wayne Millsap) 
  



6. Consideration and approval of Ordinance 2020-08-00919 calling a Bond Election to be held in 
the City of Lucas, Texas to seek voter approval of the issuance of not more than $19,190,000 
of general obligation bonds to create a fiber optic broadband utility system; making provision 
for the conduct of a joint election; and resolving other matters incident and related to such 
election. (City Secretary Stacy Henderson)  

 
Executive Session Agenda  
7. An Executive Session is not scheduled for this meeting. (Mayor Jim Olk) 
 

As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may 
convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice 
from the City Attorney regarding any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting. This 
meeting is closed to the public as provided in the Texas Government Code. 
 

8.  Reconvene from Executive Session and take any action necessary as a result of the Executive 
Session. (Mayor Jim Olk) 
 

9. Adjournment. 
 

 

Certification 
I do hereby certify that the above notice was posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act on the bulletin 
board at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, TX 75002 and on the City’s website at www.lucastexas.us 
on or before 5:00 p.m. on August 3, 2020. 
 
 
_____________________________________  
Stacy Henderson, City Secretary  

 
 
 

In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City of Lucas will provide for reasonable accommodations 
for persons attending public meetings at City Hall. Requests for accommodations or interpretive services should be 
directed to City Secretary Stacy Henderson at 972.912.1211 or by email at shenderson@lucastexas.us at least 48 
hours prior to the meeting. 

http://www.lucastexas.us/
mailto:shenderson@lucastexas.us


Item No. 01 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

August 6, 2020 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Citizen Input  
 
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
  
NA 
 
Motion  
 
NA 



Item No. 02 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

August 6, 2020 
 

 
Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Items of Community Interest 
  
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
NA 
 
Motion  
 
NA 
 
 



Item No. 03 
 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

August 6, 2020 
 

Requester: City Secretary Stacy Henderson, Finance Director Liz Exum  
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
3. Consent Agenda:  
 

A. Approval of the minutes of the July 16, 2020 City Council meeting.    
 

B. Adopt Ordinance 2020-08-00917 ordering a General Election to be held on 
November 3, 2020, for the purpose of electing two (2) City Councilmembers for Seat 
No. 1 and Seat No. 2. 
 

C. Adopt Ordinance 2020-08-00918 ordering a Special Election to be held on November 
3, 2020, for the purpose of submitting a proposition to the qualified voters of the City 
for the reauthorization of the one-half of one-percent sales and use tax to continue 
providing revenue for maintenance and repair of municipal streets. 
 

D. Approval of the City of Lucas Investment Report for quarter ending June 30, 2020. 
 

E.    Approval of the First Amended and Restated Interlocal Cooperation Agreement  
      between the City of Lucas and Seis Lagos Utility District. 

    
 

Background Information  
 
Agenda Item 3E: 
 
The Interlocal Cooperative Agreement between the City of Lucas and Seis Lagos Utility District 
for the provision of fire and emergency medical services dated June 4, 2015 is due to expire on 
September 30, 2021. Staff reached out to Seis Lagos Utility District regarding the extension of 
the contract, had legal counsel draft the extension, and has received the executed restated 
agreement from Seis Lagos Utility District. The amended and restated agreement would 
automatically renew each year for a term of one year unless Seis Lagos provides written notice 
of its intent not to renew within 120 days in advance of the renewal date.  
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Minutes of the July 16, 2020 City Council meeting. 
2. Ordinance 2020-08-00917 ordering the November 3, 2020 General Election  
3. Ordinance 2020-08-00918 ordering the November 3, 2020 Special Election – Street 

Maintenance  
4. Quarterly Investment Report for June 30, 2020. 
5. First Amended and Restated Interlocal Cooperation Agreement between the City of 

Lucas and Seis Lagos Utility District. 



Item No. 03 
 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

August 6, 2020 
 

 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
The Interlocal Cooperation Agreement would generate approximately $400,000 in revenue for 
the benefit of the City’s general fund.   
 
Recommendation  
 
City Staff recommends approval of the Consent Agenda.  
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  



1 | P a g e   C i t y  Cou n c i l  M ee t i ng  
  J u l y  1 6 ,  2 0 2 0  

 
City of  Lucas 

City Council Meeting 
July 16, 2020 

Video Conference Meeting  
7:05 P.M. 

City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 
 

MINUTES 
Call to Order  
 
City Councilmembers Present: 
Mayor Jim Olk 
Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele 
Councilmember Wayne Millsap   
Councilmember Steve Duke (arrived at 8:14 pm)  
Councilmember Philip Lawrence 
Councilmember Debbie Fisher 
 
City Councilmember Not Present:  
Councilmember Tim Baney 
 

City Staff Present: 
City Manager Joni Clarke 
City Secretary Stacy Henderson  
City Attorney Joe Gorfida  
Development Director Joe Hilbourn  
Assistant to the City Manager Kent Souriyasak 

This meeting was conducted by video conference.  
 
Mayor Olk called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. and determined that a quorum was present. 
Attendees were reminded to silence their cell phones and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited.   
 
Citizen Input 
 
1.  Citizen Input. 
 
There was no citizen comment at this meeting.  
 
Community Interest 
 
2. Items of Community Interest.  
 
Mayor Olk noted the following items of community interest:  
 

• The City Council would be holding their budget workshop on July 30 at 6 p.m.  
• City meetings will be switching to Zoom beginning on August 6, 2020. 
• The Farmers Market scheduled for July 25 would be held at a Stage 3 that allowed for a 

drive-thru market only. 
  



2 | P a g e   C i t y  Cou n c i l  M ee t i ng  
  J u l y  1 6 ,  2 0 2 0  

Consent Agenda 
 
3. Consent Agenda:  
 

3A. Approval of the minutes of the July 2, 2020 City Council meeting minutes.  
 
3B. Authorize the Mayor to enter into an interlocal agreement between the City of Lucas 

and Collin County for jail services for a one-year period beginning October 1, 2020 
through September 30, 2021 with the option to renew for an additional one-year 
period.   

 
3C. Set the public hearing date for the City of Lucas Fiscal Year 20/21 budget and tax 

rate for September 3, 2020.   
 

MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Millsap, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Peele 
to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. The motion passed unanimously by a 
6 to 0 vote.  

 
Regular Agenda            
 
4. Consider the request by Sue Blankenship on behalf of Inspiration to amend Article 2, 

Section 2.5 and Exhibit C of the approved Settlement and Release Agreement for the 
Inspiration development, to include increasing the lot count to 1,680 and decreasing 
the lot size from 10,000 square feet to 8,400 square feet for interior lots only, and to 
remove the requirement to either place restricted access gates or cul-de-sac at the 
northern and eastern entrances to the subdivision for a parcel of land located in the 
City of Lucas extraterritorial jurisdiction, Abstract A0799 Orpha Shelby Survey, Tract 
3, being 74.327 acres.   

 
Joe Hilbourn, Development Services Director stated that the current Settlement and Release 
Agreement for the Inspiration development requires a minimum lot size of 10,000 square feet and 
requires the northern and eastern entrances to the subdivision to either have a restricted access gate 
or a cul-de-sac. The current estimated lot count within Inspiration was approximately 1,634 
homesites; which was less than the minimum allowable lot count of between 1,705 to 2,058 lots per 
the Agreement. With the proposed modification, the estimated lot count will be approximately 1,680 
lots overall.  
 
Mr. Hilbourn stated that developer has agreed to do the following:  
 

1. Osage Lane - The Owner shall improve Osage Lane with a base repair and overlay at the 
time infrastructure is constructed in connection with the first final plat for the undeveloped 
property.  

2. Intersection Improvements - When the Owner develops a connection to the existing three-
way intersection at Brockdale Road and Cayden Trail, and the Owner will improve the 
existing intersection to make it a four-way intersection. 

3. HOA Notice - The Owner shall require the HOA to provide residents of the property with a 
notice that the Trinity equestrian trails are for equestrian and hiking use only. 

 



3 | P a g e   C i t y  Cou n c i l  M ee t i ng  
  J u l y  1 6 ,  2 0 2 0  

Mayor Olk and Councilmember Fisher expressed their concerns regarding the conditions of the 
roadway on Brockdale Park Road and Inspiration, also noting that additional traffic along with 
construction traffic would cause increased stress on the already damaged roadway.  
 
The Council also discussed how the entire subdivision could use Osage Lane to exit from the 
subdivision creating additional traffic.  
 
Mr. Don Huffines, representing Inspiration stated that he believed the access point on Osage Lane 
was for emergency access for fire and police only, and they would make any additional roadway 
improvements to Osage Lane that the City deemed necessary.  
 
Mayor Olk asked if Inspiration would consider making improvements to the roadway when 
construction of the development was complete, so the road was not further damaged.  
 
Mr. Huffines was in agreement with making roadway improvements at the completion of the 
development project.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Peele noted that opening traffic onto Brockdale Park Road would cause a negative 
impact to the homeowners on that roadway, would negatively impact the Raptor Center, and 
increase vandalism at the Brockdale Park Trailhead.  
 
Councilmember Millsap expressed his concern with issues regarding trash and vandalism on the 
Trinity Trail as well as homes that have gate openings to the Trinity Trail that were not supposed to 
occur.  
 
Mayor Olk asked if the applicant was willing to table this request to work on details of the 
amendment. Mr. Huffines was in agreement to table the request.  
 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Peele, seconded by Councilmember 

Lawrence to table the request to the August 6, 2020 City Council meeting.  The 
motion passed unanimously by a 6 to 0 vote.  

 
5. Discuss the City of Lucas Broadband Project including: (City Council)  
 

Courtney Violette, Magellan Advisors, reviewed the draft feasibility study with the Council noting 
that their latest comments had been incorporated into the document. Mayor Olk noted that he could 
not determine if there were enough homes identified to make up the 55 percent take rate on the heat 
maps provided.  
 
Councilmember Fisher gave a presentation reviewing revenue projections and the number of homes 
needed to be included in the 55 percent take rate. Councilmember Fisher expressed her concern that 
with the City’s growth rate, there may not be enough participation to make the project sustainable. 
Councilmember Fisher also stated her concern related to additional responsibilities that would fall to 
City staff in the interim of hiring technical staff members, using reserve funds to pay for the project, 
and that existing roadway projects need to be completed.  
 
Councilmember Millsap discussed the need for quality internet services with the amount of people 
working from home and schools going to online learning.  
 
  



4 | P a g e   C i t y  Cou n c i l  M ee t i ng  
  J u l y  1 6 ,  2 0 2 0  

Paul Rathgeb, 10 Rollingwood Drive, noted his approval of the broadband project and asked that 
the citizens be given the opportunity to vote on the project.  
 
Mayor Olk read an email received from April Spahr in favor of the broadband project into the 
record.  
 
The Council discussed the need to provide as much information as possible to residents to gather a 
clear understanding of all that was involved.  
 
There was no action taken on this item it was for discussion purposes only.  
 
6. Consider the July 27, 2020 Lucas Farmers Market.  
 
Mayor Olk stated that this item could not be discussed due to the wrong date being posted on the 
agenda, but advised the Council that the Farmers Market would be operating at Stage 3 for the July 
25 market and the Council would make a decision on the next market following a report from the 
City Manager on events from the July 25 market.  
 
7. Consider disbanding the Technology Committee.  
 
Mayor Olk stated that the Technology Committee had done their part to assess the internet needs of the 
City, made their recommendation and could be disbanded at this time.  
 
Paul Rathgeb, Chairman of the Technology Committee stated that the Committee had served their 
purpose, submitted their findings, and should be disbanded.   
 
Councilmember Fisher thanked the Chairman and Committee members for their valuable service and 
input.  
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Fisher, seconded by Councilmember Duke to 

disband the Technology Committee. The motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  
 
 
Executive Session Agenda  
 
8. Executive Session  
 
An Executive Session was not held at this meeting.  
 
9.  Reconvene from Executive Session and take any action necessary as a result of the 

Executive Session.  
 
An Executive Session was not held at this meeting.  
 
 
Adjournment  
 
10. Adjournment.  
 



5 | P a g e   C i t y  Cou n c i l  M ee t i ng  
  J u l y  1 6 ,  2 0 2 0  

MOTION:  A motion was made by Councilmember Millsap, seconded by Mayor Olk to adjourn 
the meeting at 8:22 pm. The motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  

 
 
APPROVED:       ATTEST: 
 
 
        ______________________________ 
Mayor Jim Olk  Stacy Henderson, City Secretary  



 
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
ORDINANCE 2020-07-00917 – CALLING NOVEMBER 3, 2020 GENERAL ELECTION  
APPROVED JULY 30, 2020  PAGE 1 

ORDINANCE 2020-08-00917 
[Ordering the November 3, 2020 General Election] 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, 
TEXAS, ORDERING A GENERAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON NOVEMBER 3, 2020, FOR 
THE PURPOSE OF ELECTING TWO (2) CITY COUNCILMEMBERS FOR SEAT NO. 1 
AND SEAT NO. 2; DESIGNATING LOCATION OF POLLING PLACE; ORDERING 
NOTICE OF ELECTION TO BE GIVEN AS PRESCRIBED BY LAW IN CONNECTION 
WITH SUCH ELECTION; AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF JOINT ELECTION 
AGREEMENT; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with the general laws and Constitution of the State of Texas and 
the Charter of the City of Lucas, Texas, and pursuant to Ordinance No. 2020-02-00903, a General 
Election was ordered to be held on May 2, 2020, for the purpose of electing two (2) Councilmembers 
for Seat No. 1 and Seat No. 2, with each Councilmember’s term being for a period of three (3) years.  
In accordance with State law, the filing period for this General Election began on January 15, 2020, 
and ended on February 14, 2020, at 5:00 p.m.; and  
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 418.016 of the Texas Government Code, on March 18, 2020, 
in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Governor of the State of Texas signed a proclamation 
suspending certain provisions of the Texas Election Code to allow all local political subdivisions 
utilizing the May 2, 2020 uniform election date to postpone their elections to the November 3, 2020 
uniform election date; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in response to the Governor’s proclamation, the City passed Ordinance 2020-03-
00907, postponing the May 2, 2020 General Election; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council is now ordering the General Election to be held on the 
November 3, 2020 uniform election date;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LUCAS, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Section 1.  A General Election is hereby ordered for November 3, 2020, for the purpose of 
electing two (2) Lucas City Councilmembers for Seat No. 1 and Seat No. 2, each such term being for 
a period of three (3) years.  In accordance with State law, the filing period for this General Election 
began on January 15, 2020, and ended on February 14, 2020, at 5:00 p.m.; 
 
 Section 2.  Pursuant to the Joint Election Agreement, the Elections Administrator of Collin 
County shall serve as Elections Administrator for the election.  Presiding Election Judges and 
Alternate Presiding Election Judges appointed to serve the authorized polling places and the early 
voting clerk and deputy early voting clerks shall be those election officials furnished by the Elections 
Administrator from the list of proposed election judges as required in the Elections Services Contract.  
The City Manager and City Secretary are hereby authorized to execute an Elections Services Contract 
with the Collin County Elections Department for the General Election on November 3, 2020.  The 
City Secretary shall have further authority to approve any minor modifications as may be necessary in 
the best interest of the City. A voting system or systems meeting the standards and requirements of 



 
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
ORDINANCE 2020-07-00917 – CALLING NOVEMBER 3, 2020 GENERAL ELECTION  
APPROVED JULY 30, 2020  PAGE 2 
 

the Texas Election Code, as amended, is hereby adopted and approved for early voting by personal 
appearance and by mail and for election day voting. 
 
 Section 3.  Notice of the General Election shall be posted on the bulletin board used to post 
notice of the City Council meetings and be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City.  
That said Notice must be published at least once, not earlier than the 30th day nor later than the 10th 
day, before Election Day as provided in Section 4.003(a)(1) of the Texas Election Code.  A copy of 
the published Notice that contains the name of the newspaper and the date of publication shall be 
retained as a record of such notice, and the person posting the Notice shall make a record of the time 
of posting, starting date, and the place of posting. 
 
 Section 4.  Polling place locations and hours for both early voting and Election Day shall be 
any vote center location as shown on the attached "Exhibit A".  The polling place locations and 
hours for both early voting and Election Day for all Collin County legally qualified voters residing in 
the City of Lucas shall be any vote center location as shown on the attached "Exhibit “A". 
 
 Applications for ballot by mail shall be received and processed by the Collin County Elections 
Administrator, 2010 Redbud Boulevard, Suite 102, McKinney, Texas 75069.  Applications for ballots 
by mail must be received no later than the close of business on October 23, 2020. 
 
 For purposes of processing ballots cast in early voting, the election officers for the early voting 
ballot board for this election shall be appointed and designated in accordance with the provisions of 
the Contract. 
 
 Section 5.  The City Secretary shall present the General Election returns to the City Council 
at a Council meeting for the canvassing of said election in accordance with the Texas Election Code.  
The candidate for Councilmember Seat No. 1 and Councilmember for Seat No. 2 that receives a 
majority of valid votes by qualified voters at the election shall be declared elected.  In the event no 
candidate receives a majority of all the votes cast for all the candidates for an office, a runoff 
election shall be ordered by the City Council in accordance with the Lucas City Charter and State 
law. 
 
 Section 6.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its passage.  
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lucas this 6th day of 
August, 2020. 

 
       
  



 
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
ORDINANCE 2020-07-00917 – CALLING NOVEMBER 3, 2020 GENERAL ELECTION  
APPROVED JULY 30, 2020  PAGE 3 
 

      APPROVED: 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Jim Olk, Mayor  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ __________________________________________ 
Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr., City Attorney  Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 
(07-09-2020:TM 116685) 



November 3, 2020 General Special Elections

Potential Early Voting Locations, Dates and Hours
Exhibit  "A"

City

Allen

Allen

Anna

Plano

Celina

McKinney

Plano

Frisco

McKinney

McKinney

Plano

Wylie

McKinney

Plano

McKinney

Princeton

Frisco

Frisco

McKinney

Plano

Plano

Josephine

Lavon

Allen

Lucas

McKinney

Melissa

Richardson

Murphy

New Hope

McKinney

Parker

Plano

Plano

Prosper

Dallas

Wylie

Frisco

Richardson

Note: The below list contains potential Early Voting Polling Locations for the November 3, 2020 General and 

Special Elections.  The list of Polling Locations will be revised as locations are confirmed.

Address

200 E Stacy Road

1451 North Watters

501 S Sherley Ave

Polling Place

Allen Event Center

Allen ISD Service Center

Anna ISD Board Conference Room

Collin College McKinney Campus 2200 University

Carpenter Park Recreation Center

Celina ISD Administration Building

Christ Fellowship

Christ United Methodist Church

6701 Coit Road

205 S. Colorado

2801 Orchid Dr.

Collin College Frisco Campus

3101 Coit Road

9700 Wade Blvd.

Collin College Higher Education Center 3452 Spur 399

Collin College Plano Campus 2800 Spring Creek Parkway

Collin College Wylie Campus 391 Country Club Road

2010 Redbud Blvd, Ste. 102Collin County Elections Office

Haggard Library

Davis Library 7501 Independence Parkway

Eldorado Country Club 2604 Country Club Drive

511 Jefferson St.First Baptist Church Princeton

Frisco Fire Station #8 14300 Eldorado Pkwy.

Frisco Senior Center 6670 Moore Street

Gay Library 6861 W. Eldorado Parkway

2501 Coit Rd

259 Country Club

665 Country Club Road

861 Independence Pkwy.

Harrington Library

Josephine City Hall

Lavon City Hall

Lovejoy ISD Administration Bldg.

Lucas Community Center

McKinney Fire Station #7

1501 18th Street

201 Main Street

120 School Road

3411 Barker Ave.

2831 E President George Bush Hwy

205 N. Murphy RoadMurphy Community Center

New Hope Town Hall 121 Rockcrest Road

Melissa City Hall

Methodist Richardson Medical Center 

Old Settlers Recreation Center 1201 E. Louisiana

5700 E. Parker RoadParker City Hall

Parr Library 6200 Windhaven Pkwy.

Plano ISD Administration Center 2700 W. 15th Street

Prosper ISD Administration Bldg. 605 E. Seventh Street

Renner-Frankford Library 6400 Frankford Road

300 Country Club

1 Cowboy Way

Smith Library

The Star in Frisco

UTD Campus-Callier Clinical Research Center 811 Synergy Park Blvd

1 of 2 Revised 07/20/2020



November 3, 2020 General Special Elections

Potential Early Voting Locations, Dates and Hours
Exhibit  "A"

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

October 11 October 12 October 13 October 14 October 15 October 16 October 17

Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting

8am -5pm 8am -5pm 8am -5pm 8am -5pm 7am -7pm

October 18 October 19 October 20 October 21 October 22 October 23 October 24

Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting

1pm - 6pm 7am -7pm 7am -7pm 7am -7pm 7am -7pm 7am -7pm 7am -7pm

October 25 October 26 October 27 October 28 October 29 October 30 October 31

Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting

1pm - 6pm 7am - 7pm 7am - 7pm 7am - 7pm 7am - 7pm 7am - 7pm

Important Note: Eligible  Collin County registered voters (with an effective date of registration on or before October 5, 202) 

may vote at any early voting location. 

2 of 2 Revised 07/20/2020



November 3, 2020

General Special Elections

Potential Election Day Vote Centers

Polling Place Address City

Aldridge Elementary School 720 Pleasant Valley Richardson

Allen Event Center 200 E Stacy Rd Allen

Allen ISD Service Center 1451 North Watters Allen

Anna ISD Board Conference Room 501 S Sherley Ave Anna

Armstrong Middle School 3805 Timberline Plano

Benton Staley Middle School 6927 Stadium Drive Frisco

Bentwood Trail Presbyterian  Church 6000 Bentwood Trail Dallas

Bethany Elementary School 2418 Micarta Drive Allen

Blue Ridge ISD Administration Building 318 West School Street Blue Ridge

Bowman Middle School 2501 Jupiter Road Plano

Boyd Elementary School 800 S jupiter Road Allen

Carpenter Middle School 3905 Rainier Road Plano

Carpenter Park Recreation Center 6701 Coit Road Plano

Celina ISD Administration Building 205 S. Colorado Celina

Centennial High School 6901 Coit Road Frisco

Chandler Elementary School 1000 Water Oak Drive Allen

Christ Fellowship-McKinney Campus 2801 Orchid Dr. McKinney

Christ the Servant Lutheran Church 821 S. Greenville Ave. Allen

Christ United Methodist Church 3101 Coit Road Plano

Christie Elementary School 10300 Huntington Road Frisco

Clark High School 523 Spring Creek Plano

Collin College Frisco Campus 9700 Wade Blvd. Frisco

Collin College Higher Education Center 3452 Spur 399 McKinney

Collin College McKinney Campus 2200 University McKinney

Collin College Plano Campus 2800 Spring Creek Parkway Plano

Collin College Wylie Campus 391 Country Club Road Wylie

Collin County Elections Office 2010 Redbud Blvd, Ste. 102 McKinney

Community ISD Technology and Conference Center 611 FM 1138 Nevada

Davis Library 7501 Independence Parkway Plano

Dowell Middle School 301 Ridge Road McKinney

Dr. Pepper Star Center - Champions Café 6993 Stars Ave. McKinney

Eldorado Country Club 2604 Country Club Drive McKinney

Fairview Town Hall 372 Town Place Fairview

First Baptist Church - Josephine 300 S. Main Street Josephine

First Baptist Church - Princeton 511 Jefferson St. Princeton

First Baptist Church -Branch 7011 FM 546 Princeton

First Baptist Church Farmersville - Youth Building 201 Farmersville Pkwy. Farmersville

First Baptist Church Frisco 7901 Main Street Frisco

Forman Elementary School (Plano ISD) 3600 Timberline Dr Plano

Fowler Middle School 3801 McDermott Road Plano

Note: The below list contains potential Vote Centers for the November 3, 2020 General and Special Elections.  The 

list of Vote Centers will be revised as locations are confirmed.  Eligible Collin County registered voters (with an 

effective date of registration on or before October 5, 2020) may vote at any Election Day Vote Center location. 

Revised 07/20/2020



November 3, 2020

General Special Elections

Potential Election Day Vote Centers

Frankford Middle School (PISD) 7706 Osage Plaza Parkway Dallas

Frisco Fire Station #8 14300 Eldorado Pkwy. Frisco

Frisco Senior Center 6670 Moore Street Frisco

Gateway Prosper Campus 4331 E Prosper Trail Prosper

Gay Library 6861 W. Eldorado Parkway McKinney

George Bush Elementary School 2000 Eagle Aerie Lane St Paul

Haggar Elementary School 17820 Campbell Road Dallas

Haggard Library 2501 Coit Rd Plano

Harrington Library 1501 18th Street Plano

Heritage High School 14040 Eldorado Pkwy. Frisco

Hunt Middle School 4900 Legendary Drive Frisco

Islamic Association of Collin County 6401 Independence Pkwy. Plano

John Q. Hammons Center - Courtyard Marriott 210 East Stacy Road Allen

Josephine City Hall 201 Main Street Josephine

Kerr Elementary School 1325 Glendover Drive Allen

Lavon City Hall 120 School Road Lavon

Liberty High School 15250 Rolater Road Frisco

Light Farms Elementary School 1100 Cypress Creek Way Celina

Lovejoy ISD Administration Bldg. 259 Country Club Allen

Lowery Freshman Center 601 E Main Street Allen

Lowry Crossing City Hall 1405 S. Bridgefarmer Road Lowry Crossing

Lucas Community Center 665 Country Club Road Lucas

Maus Middle School 12175 Coit Road Frisco

McKinney Fire Station #7 861 Independence Pkwy. McKinney

McKinney Senior Recreation Center 1400 S. College McKinney

Meadows Elementary School 2800 18th Street Plano

Melissa City Hall 3411 Barker Ave. Melissa

Methodist Richardson Medical Center 2831 E President George Bush Hwy Richardson

Miller Elementary School 5651 Coventry Drive Richardson

Murphy Community Center 205 N. Murphy Road Murphy

New Hope Town Hall 121 Rockcrest Road New Hope

Old Settlers Recreation Center 1201 E. Louisiana McKinney

Parker City Hall 5700 E. Parker Road Parker

Parr Library 6200 Windhaven Pkwy. Plano

Plano ISD Administration Center 2700 W. 15th Street Plano

Plano Senior Center 401 W. 16th Street Plano

Preston Trail Community Church 8055 Indipendence Parkway Frisco

Prestonwood Church 1001 w Prosper Trail Prosper

Prosper ISD Administration Bldg. 605 E. Seventh Street Prosper

Renner-Frankford Library 6400 Frankford Road Dallas

Royse City ISD Mike McKinney Maintenance Facility 1420 FM 1777 Royse City

Sachse Community Center 3815 Sachse Road Sachse

Seis Lagos Community Services Association 222 Seis Lago Trail Wylie 

Shepton High School 5505 Plano Pkwy. Plano

Shiloh Missionary Baptist Church 1310 Avenue "I" Plano

Revised 07/20/2020



November 3, 2020

General Special Elections

Potential Election Day Vote Centers

Exhibit "B"

Slaughter Elementary 2706 Wolford Ave McKinney

Smith Library 300 Country Club Wylie

Stinson Elementary School 4201 Greenfield Drive Richardson

Stonebridge Country Club 7003 Beacon Hill Road McKinney

Stonebridge United Methodist Church 1800 S. Stonebridge Drive McKinney

Story Elementary School 1550 Edelweiss Drive Allen

Suncreek United Methodist Church 1517 W. McDermott Drive Allen

Terry Pope Administration Building 611 North FM 1138 Nevada

The Star in Frisco 1 Cowboys Way Frisco

Tom Muehlenbeck Recreation Center 5801 W. Parker Road Plano

Toyota Stadium 9200 World Cup Way Frisco

UTD Campus-Callier Clinical Research Center 811 Synergy Park Blvd Richardson

Weston Community Center 117 Main Street Weston

Woodcreek Church 3400 E. Renner Road Richardson

Revised 07/20/2020



 
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
Ordinance 2020-08-00918 Calling November 3, 2020 Special Election – Street Maintenance  
Approved: August 6, 2020  Page 1 

ORDINANCE 2020-08-00918 
[Ordering the November 3, 2020 Special Election – Street Maintenance] 

 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, 

COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, ORDERING A SPECIAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON 
NOVEMBER 3, 2020, FOR THE PURPOSE OF SUBMITTING PROPOSITIONS TO THE 
QUALIFIED VOTERS OF THE CITY FOR THE CONTINUATION OF THE ONE-HALF OF 
ONE-PERCENT SALES AND USE TAX TO PROVIDE REVENUE FOR MAINTENANCE 
AND REPAIR OF MUNICIPAL STREETS; PROVIDING FOR THE PUBLICATION AND 
POSTING OF NOTICE; DESIGNATING LOCATION OF POLLING PLACE; ORDERING 
NOTICE OF ELECTION TO BE GIVEN AS PRESCRIBED BY LAW IN CONNECTION 
WITH SUCH ELECTION; AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF JOINT ELECTION 
AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Section 1.  A Special Election is hereby ordered for November 3, 2020, for the purpose of 
submitting propositions to the qualified voters of the City for the reauthorization of the one-half of 
one-percent sales and use tax to continue providing revenue for maintenance and repair of municipal 
streets.  
 

PROPOSITION A 
 

 The Proposition ballot language shall read:  
 
"The reauthorization of the one-half of one- percent (.50%) sales and use tax within the City of 
Lucas Texas, to continue providing revenue for maintenance and repair of municipal streets." 
 

FOR THE PROPOSITION _______ AGAINST THE PROPOSITION _______ 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Section 2.  Pursuant to the Joint Election Agreement, the Elections Administrator of Collin 
County shall serve as Elections Administrator for the election.  Presiding Election Judges and 
Alternate Presiding Election Judges appointed to serve the authorized polling places and the early 
voting clerk and deputy early voting clerks shall be those election officials furnished by the Elections 
Administrator from the list of proposed election judges as required in the Elections Services Contract.  
The City Manager and City Secretary are hereby authorized to execute an Elections Services Contract 
with the Collin County Elections Department for the General Election on November 3, 2020.  The 
City Secretary shall have further authority to approve any minor modifications as may be necessary in 
the best interest of the City. A voting system or systems meeting the standards and requirements of 
the Texas Election Code, as amended, is hereby adopted and approved for early voting by personal 
appearance and by mail and for election day voting. 
 
 Section 3.  Notice of the Special Election shall be posted on the bulletin board used to post 
notice of the City Council meetings and be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City.  
That said Notice must be published at least once, not earlier than the 30th day nor later than the 10th 



 
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
Ordinance 2020-08-00918 Calling November 3, 2020 Special Election – Street Maintenance  
Approved: August 6, 2020  Page 2 
 

day, before Election Day as provided in Section 4.003(a)(1) of the Texas Election Code.  A copy of 
the published Notice that contains the name of the newspaper and the date of publication shall be 
retained as a record of such notice, and the person posting the Notice shall make a record of the time 
of posting, starting date, and the place of posting. 
 
 Section 4.  Polling place locations and hours for both early voting and Election Day shall be 
any vote center location as shown on the attached "Exhibit A".  The polling place locations and hours 
for both early voting and Election Day for all Collin County legally qualified voters residing in the 
City of Lucas shall be any vote center location as shown on the attached "Exhibit “A". 
 
 Applications for ballot by mail shall be received and processed by the Collin County Elections 
Administrator, 2010 Redbud Boulevard, Suite 102, McKinney, Texas 75069.  Applications for ballots 
by mail must be received no later than the close of business on October 23, 2020. 
 
 For purposes of processing ballots cast in early voting, the election officers for the early voting 
ballot board for this election shall be appointed and designated in accordance with the provisions of 
the Contract. 
 
 Section 5.  The City Secretary shall present the Special Election returns to the City Council 
at a Council meeting for the canvassing of said election in accordance with the Texas Election Code.   
 
 Section 6.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
publication in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Lucas, and it is accordingly 
so ordained. 
 
 DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNSEL OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, ON THIS 6th DAY OF AUGUST, 2020. 
 
       
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Jim Olk, Mayor  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ ____________________________________ 
Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr., City Attorney  Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 
(07-29-2020:TM 117007) 



November 3, 2020 General Special Elections

Potential Early Voting Locations, Dates and Hours
Exhibit  "A"

City

Allen

Allen

Anna

Plano

Celina

McKinney

Plano

Frisco

McKinney

McKinney

Plano

Wylie

McKinney

Plano

McKinney

Princeton

Frisco

Frisco

McKinney

Plano

Plano

Josephine

Lavon

Allen

Lucas

McKinney

Melissa

Richardson

Murphy

New Hope

McKinney

Parker

Plano

Plano

Prosper

Dallas

Wylie

Frisco

Richardson

Note: The below list contains potential Early Voting Polling Locations for the November 3, 2020 General and 

Special Elections.  The list of Polling Locations will be revised as locations are confirmed.

Address

200 E Stacy Road

1451 North Watters

501 S Sherley Ave

Polling Place

Allen Event Center

Allen ISD Service Center

Anna ISD Board Conference Room

Collin College McKinney Campus 2200 University

Carpenter Park Recreation Center

Celina ISD Administration Building

Christ Fellowship

Christ United Methodist Church

6701 Coit Road

205 S. Colorado

2801 Orchid Dr.

Collin College Frisco Campus

3101 Coit Road

9700 Wade Blvd.

Collin College Higher Education Center 3452 Spur 399

Collin College Plano Campus 2800 Spring Creek Parkway

Collin College Wylie Campus 391 Country Club Road

2010 Redbud Blvd, Ste. 102Collin County Elections Office

Haggard Library

Davis Library 7501 Independence Parkway

Eldorado Country Club 2604 Country Club Drive

511 Jefferson St.First Baptist Church Princeton

Frisco Fire Station #8 14300 Eldorado Pkwy.

Frisco Senior Center 6670 Moore Street

Gay Library 6861 W. Eldorado Parkway

2501 Coit Rd

259 Country Club

665 Country Club Road

861 Independence Pkwy.

Harrington Library

Josephine City Hall

Lavon City Hall

Lovejoy ISD Administration Bldg.

Lucas Community Center

McKinney Fire Station #7

1501 18th Street

201 Main Street

120 School Road

3411 Barker Ave.

2831 E President George Bush Hwy

205 N. Murphy RoadMurphy Community Center

New Hope Town Hall 121 Rockcrest Road

Melissa City Hall

Methodist Richardson Medical Center 

Old Settlers Recreation Center 1201 E. Louisiana

5700 E. Parker RoadParker City Hall

Parr Library 6200 Windhaven Pkwy.

Plano ISD Administration Center 2700 W. 15th Street

Prosper ISD Administration Bldg. 605 E. Seventh Street

Renner-Frankford Library 6400 Frankford Road

300 Country Club

1 Cowboy Way

Smith Library

The Star in Frisco

UTD Campus-Callier Clinical Research Center 811 Synergy Park Blvd

1 of 2 Revised 07/20/2020



November 3, 2020 General Special Elections

Potential Early Voting Locations, Dates and Hours
Exhibit  "A"

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

October 11 October 12 October 13 October 14 October 15 October 16 October 17

Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting

8am -5pm 8am -5pm 8am -5pm 8am -5pm 7am -7pm

October 18 October 19 October 20 October 21 October 22 October 23 October 24

Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting

1pm - 6pm 7am -7pm 7am -7pm 7am -7pm 7am -7pm 7am -7pm 7am -7pm

October 25 October 26 October 27 October 28 October 29 October 30 October 31

Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting

1pm - 6pm 7am - 7pm 7am - 7pm 7am - 7pm 7am - 7pm 7am - 7pm

Important Note: Eligible  Collin County registered voters (with an effective date of registration on or before October 5, 202) 

may vote at any early voting location. 

2 of 2 Revised 07/20/2020



November 3, 2020

General Special Elections

Potential Election Day Vote Centers

Polling Place Address City

Aldridge Elementary School 720 Pleasant Valley Richardson

Allen Event Center 200 E Stacy Rd Allen

Allen ISD Service Center 1451 North Watters Allen

Anna ISD Board Conference Room 501 S Sherley Ave Anna

Armstrong Middle School 3805 Timberline Plano

Benton Staley Middle School 6927 Stadium Drive Frisco

Bentwood Trail Presbyterian  Church 6000 Bentwood Trail Dallas

Bethany Elementary School 2418 Micarta Drive Allen

Blue Ridge ISD Administration Building 318 West School Street Blue Ridge

Bowman Middle School 2501 Jupiter Road Plano

Boyd Elementary School 800 S jupiter Road Allen

Carpenter Middle School 3905 Rainier Road Plano

Carpenter Park Recreation Center 6701 Coit Road Plano

Celina ISD Administration Building 205 S. Colorado Celina

Centennial High School 6901 Coit Road Frisco

Chandler Elementary School 1000 Water Oak Drive Allen

Christ Fellowship-McKinney Campus 2801 Orchid Dr. McKinney

Christ the Servant Lutheran Church 821 S. Greenville Ave. Allen

Christ United Methodist Church 3101 Coit Road Plano

Christie Elementary School 10300 Huntington Road Frisco

Clark High School 523 Spring Creek Plano

Collin College Frisco Campus 9700 Wade Blvd. Frisco

Collin College Higher Education Center 3452 Spur 399 McKinney

Collin College McKinney Campus 2200 University McKinney

Collin College Plano Campus 2800 Spring Creek Parkway Plano

Collin College Wylie Campus 391 Country Club Road Wylie

Collin County Elections Office 2010 Redbud Blvd, Ste. 102 McKinney

Community ISD Technology and Conference Center 611 FM 1138 Nevada

Davis Library 7501 Independence Parkway Plano

Dowell Middle School 301 Ridge Road McKinney

Dr. Pepper Star Center - Champions Café 6993 Stars Ave. McKinney

Eldorado Country Club 2604 Country Club Drive McKinney

Fairview Town Hall 372 Town Place Fairview

First Baptist Church - Josephine 300 S. Main Street Josephine

First Baptist Church - Princeton 511 Jefferson St. Princeton

First Baptist Church -Branch 7011 FM 546 Princeton

First Baptist Church Farmersville - Youth Building 201 Farmersville Pkwy. Farmersville

First Baptist Church Frisco 7901 Main Street Frisco

Forman Elementary School (Plano ISD) 3600 Timberline Dr Plano

Fowler Middle School 3801 McDermott Road Plano

Note: The below list contains potential Vote Centers for the November 3, 2020 General and Special Elections.  The 

list of Vote Centers will be revised as locations are confirmed.  Eligible Collin County registered voters (with an 

effective date of registration on or before October 5, 2020) may vote at any Election Day Vote Center location. 

Revised 07/20/2020



November 3, 2020

General Special Elections

Potential Election Day Vote Centers

Frankford Middle School (PISD) 7706 Osage Plaza Parkway Dallas

Frisco Fire Station #8 14300 Eldorado Pkwy. Frisco

Frisco Senior Center 6670 Moore Street Frisco

Gateway Prosper Campus 4331 E Prosper Trail Prosper

Gay Library 6861 W. Eldorado Parkway McKinney

George Bush Elementary School 2000 Eagle Aerie Lane St Paul

Haggar Elementary School 17820 Campbell Road Dallas

Haggard Library 2501 Coit Rd Plano

Harrington Library 1501 18th Street Plano

Heritage High School 14040 Eldorado Pkwy. Frisco

Hunt Middle School 4900 Legendary Drive Frisco

Islamic Association of Collin County 6401 Independence Pkwy. Plano

John Q. Hammons Center - Courtyard Marriott 210 East Stacy Road Allen

Josephine City Hall 201 Main Street Josephine

Kerr Elementary School 1325 Glendover Drive Allen

Lavon City Hall 120 School Road Lavon

Liberty High School 15250 Rolater Road Frisco

Light Farms Elementary School 1100 Cypress Creek Way Celina

Lovejoy ISD Administration Bldg. 259 Country Club Allen

Lowery Freshman Center 601 E Main Street Allen

Lowry Crossing City Hall 1405 S. Bridgefarmer Road Lowry Crossing

Lucas Community Center 665 Country Club Road Lucas

Maus Middle School 12175 Coit Road Frisco

McKinney Fire Station #7 861 Independence Pkwy. McKinney

McKinney Senior Recreation Center 1400 S. College McKinney

Meadows Elementary School 2800 18th Street Plano

Melissa City Hall 3411 Barker Ave. Melissa

Methodist Richardson Medical Center 2831 E President George Bush Hwy Richardson

Miller Elementary School 5651 Coventry Drive Richardson

Murphy Community Center 205 N. Murphy Road Murphy

New Hope Town Hall 121 Rockcrest Road New Hope

Old Settlers Recreation Center 1201 E. Louisiana McKinney

Parker City Hall 5700 E. Parker Road Parker

Parr Library 6200 Windhaven Pkwy. Plano

Plano ISD Administration Center 2700 W. 15th Street Plano

Plano Senior Center 401 W. 16th Street Plano

Preston Trail Community Church 8055 Indipendence Parkway Frisco

Prestonwood Church 1001 w Prosper Trail Prosper

Prosper ISD Administration Bldg. 605 E. Seventh Street Prosper

Renner-Frankford Library 6400 Frankford Road Dallas

Royse City ISD Mike McKinney Maintenance Facility 1420 FM 1777 Royse City

Sachse Community Center 3815 Sachse Road Sachse

Seis Lagos Community Services Association 222 Seis Lago Trail Wylie 

Shepton High School 5505 Plano Pkwy. Plano

Shiloh Missionary Baptist Church 1310 Avenue "I" Plano

Revised 07/20/2020



November 3, 2020

General Special Elections

Potential Election Day Vote Centers

Slaughter Elementary 2706 Wolford Ave McKinney

Smith Library 300 Country Club Wylie

Stinson Elementary School 4201 Greenfield Drive Richardson

Stonebridge Country Club 7003 Beacon Hill Road McKinney

Stonebridge United Methodist Church 1800 S. Stonebridge Drive McKinney

Story Elementary School 1550 Edelweiss Drive Allen

Suncreek United Methodist Church 1517 W. McDermott Drive Allen

Terry Pope Administration Building 611 North FM 1138 Nevada

The Star in Frisco 1 Cowboys Way Frisco

Tom Muehlenbeck Recreation Center 5801 W. Parker Road Plano

Toyota Stadium 9200 World Cup Way Frisco

UTD Campus-Callier Clinical Research Center 811 Synergy Park Blvd Richardson

Weston Community Center 117 Main Street Weston

Woodcreek Church 3400 E. Renner Road Richardson

Revised 07/20/2020



















Item No. 04 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

August 6, 2020 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider the request by Sue Blankenship on behalf of Inspiration to amend Article 2, Section 2.5 
and Exhibit C of the approved Settlement and Release Agreement for the Inspiration 
development, to include increasing the lot count to 1,680 and decreasing the lot size from 10,000 
square feet to 8,400 square feet for interior lots only, and to remove the requirement to either 
place restricted access gates or cul-de-sac at the northern and eastern entrances to the subdivision 
for a parcel of land located in the City of Lucas extraterritorial jurisdiction, Abstract A0799 
Orpha Shelby Survey, Tract 3, being 74.327 acres.  
 
Background Information  
 
The Settlement and Release Agreement for the Inspiration development went before City 
Council on July 16, 2020. The City Council suggested changes to the agreement, those changes 
have been made and are shown in bold below.  
 
The current Exhibit C of the Settlement and Release Agreement for the Inspiration development 
requires a minimum lot size of 10,000 square feet. Section 2.5 also requires the northern and 
eastern entrances to the subdivision to either have a restricted access gate or a cul-de-sac.  

The current estimated lot count within Inspiration is approximately 1,634 homesites; which is 
less than the minimum allowable lot count (range of 1,705 to 2,058 lots per Exhibit B of the 
Agreement). With the proposed modification, the estimated lot count will be approximately 
1,680 lots overall.  

For the City’s consideration for adding the additional 46 lots Inspirations agrees to the following: 
 

Osage Lane. The Owner shall improve Osage Lane with a base repair and overlay at the time 
infrastructure is constructed in connection with the first final plat for the undeveloped 
property. Upon completion of the improved Osage Lane, the Owner shall provide or cause 
to provide maintenance for Osage Lane for a period of five (5) years from date of this 
Agreement.  

 
Intersection Improvements. When the Owner develops an (Emergency Access Only) 
connection to the existing three-way intersection at Brockdale Road and Cayden Trail, the 
Owner will improve the existing intersection to make it a four-way intersection. 

HOA Notice. The Owner shall require the HOA to continue to provide residents of the 
property with notice that the Trinity equestrian trails are for equestrian and hiking use only. 

 

 



Item No. 04 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

August 6, 2020 
 

 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 

1. Approved Settlement and Release Agreement including Letter from Susan Blankenship 
on behalf of Inspiration, including Exhibit A, B, C and D 

2. Proposed restated development agreement  
3. Location map Osage Lane  

 
 

Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation   
 
Staff recommends approval as presented  
 
Motion  
 
I hereby make a motion to approve/deny the request by Sue Blankenship on behalf of Inspiration 
to amend Article 2, Section 2.5 and Exhibit C of the approved Settlement and Release 
Agreement for the Inspiration development, to include increasing the lot count to 1,680 and 
decreasing the lot size from 10,000 square feet to 8,400 square feet for interior lots only, and to 
remove the requirement to either place restricted access gates or cul-de-sac at the northern and 
eastern entrances to the subdivision for a parcel of land located in the City of Lucas 
extraterritorial jurisdiction, Abstract A0799 Orpha Shelby Survey, Tract 3, being 74.327 acres. 





































Page 1 
1580.017\88914.2 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO SETTLEMENT AND RELEASE AGREEMENT 

This First Amendment to the Settlement and Release Agreement (this "Amendment") is made and 

entered into effective as of the ____day of August, 2020 (the "Effective Date") by and between 

Union Valley Ranch, LLC and Lavon Development, LLC (collectively, the "Owner") and the City 

of Lucas, Texas (the "City").   

ARTICLE I 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Lavon 593 Land Investment Partners, LP and the City entered into that 

certain Settlement and Release Agreement effective September 17, 2009 that is recorded in the 

real property records of Collin County, Texas as Document No. 20090922001175820 (the 

"Original Agreement"); and 

WHEREAS, Lavon 593 Land Investment Partners, LP assigned all of its rights in the 

Original Agreement to Parker Lakeside, LLC, a Texas limited liability Company by an Assignment 

of Development Agreement dated as of March 29, 2013 and recorded as Document No. 

20130405000461290 in the Official Public Records of Collin, County Texas.  

WHEREAS, Parker Lakeside, LLC assigned all of its rights in the Original Agreement 

with respect to the property described on Exhibit A to Union Valley Ranch, LLC by an 

Assignment of Development Agreement dated as of January 1, 2020 and recorded as Document 

No. 20200527000771440 in the Official Public Records of Collin, County Texas; and 

WHEREAS, Parker Lakeside, LLC assigned all of its rights in the Original Agreement 

with respect to the property described on Exhibit A-1 to Lavon Development, LLC by an 

Assignment of Development Agreement dated as of January 1, 2020 and recorded as Document 

No. 20200527000771430 in the Official Public Records of Collin, County Texas; and 

WHEREAS, Union Valley Ranch, LLC owns an approximately 88.874-acre tract of land 

governed by the Original Agreement, as more particularly described on the attached Exhibit A; 

and 

WHEREAS, Lavon Development, LLC owns an approximately 93.99-acre tract of land 

governed by the Original Agreement, as more particularly described on the attached Exhibit A-1; 

and 

WHEREAS, the property described on Exhibit A and Exhibit A-1 is collectively referred 

to herein as the "Undeveloped Property"; and 

WHEREAS, the City acknowledges that Union Valley Ranch, LLC and Lavon 

Development, LLC are the "Owner" of the Undeveloped Property for all purposes under the 

Original Agreement as of the Effective Date of this Amendment; and 



Page 2 
1580.017\88914.2 

WHEREAS, all capitalized terms in this Amendment, to the extent not otherwise expressly 

defined herein, shall have the same meanings ascribed to such terms in the Original Agreement; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend Exhibit B and Exhibit C of the Original 

Agreement as they apply to the Undeveloped Property; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to address improvements and maintenance to Osage Lane; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to address improvements to the existing three-way 

intersection of Brockdale Road and Cayden Trail; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties intend to memorialize those certain letter agreements attached 

hereto as Exhibit D; and   

WHEREAS, Parties intend that this Amendment be a development agreement as provided 

for by Section 212.172 of the Texas Local Government Code; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties have the authority to enter into this Amendment pursuant to 

Section 212.171 et seq of the Texas Local Government Code. 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the Recitals set forth in this Amendment, 

and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are 

acknowledged and agreed by the Owner and the City, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Recitals.  The recitals contained in this Amendment: (a) are true and correct as of the Effective 

Date; (b) form the basis upon which the Parties negotiated and entered into this Amendment; 

(c) are legislative findings of the City Council, and (d) reflect the final intent of the Parties 

with regard to the subject matter of this Amendment.  In the event it becomes necessary to 

interpret any provision of this Amendment, the intent of the Parties, as evidenced by the 

recitals, shall be taken into consideration and, to the maximum extent possible, given full 

effect.  The Parties have relied upon the recitals as part of the consideration for entering into 

this Amendment and, but for the intent of the Parties reflected by the recitals, would not have 

entered into this Amendment. 

 

2. Revised Exhibit B.  Exhibit B attached to the Original Agreement is hereby replaced with 

Exhibit B attached hereto, which revised Exhibit B shall apply only to the Undeveloped 

Property. 

3. Revised Exhibit C. Exhibit C attached to the Original Agreement is hereby replaced with 

Exhibit C attached hereto, which revised Exhibit C shall apply only to the Undeveloped 

Property. 

4. Section 2.5 of Original Agreement.  Section 2.5 of the Original Agreement is hereby revised 

in its entirety to read as follows: 



Page 3 
1580.017\88914.2 

Notwithstanding the development regulations shown on the Plan for Development, 

when developed, those portions of the Property shown on Exhibit C attached to the 

Original Agreement (the "Large Lot Property") will be developed with single 

family residential homes on lots with a minimum lot area of 10,000 square feet and 

a minimum home size of 2,000 square feet, provided, however, the Undeveloped 

Property shall be developed in accordance with lot sizes shown on the revised 

Exhibit C attached to this Amendment.  An emergency access gate shall be 

provided at the location shown on the revised Exhibit C attached to this 

Amendment at the time the adjacent portion of the Property is developed with 

homes.  All other development regulations shown on the Plan for Development are 

applicable to the Large Lot Property.  No town home or multifamily uses are 

permitted to be constructed within Lucas' ETJ.  All single-family residential homes 

constructed within Lucas' ETJ will have a minimum homes size of 2,000 square 

feet. 

5. Osage Lane.  The Owner shall improve Osage Lane with a base repair and overlay at the time 

infrastructure is constructed in connection with the first final plat for the Undeveloped 

Property.  Upon completion of the improved Osage Lane, the Owner shall provide or cause to 

provide maintenance for Osage Lane for a period of five (5) years from date of this Agreement.  

6. Intersection Improvements. When the Owner develops an (Emergency Access Only) 

connection to the existing three-way intersection at Brockdale Road and Cayden Trial, the 

Owner will improve the existing intersection to make it a four-way intersection. 

7. HOA Notice.  The Owner shall require the HOA to continue to provide residents of the 

property with notice that the Trinity equestrian trails are for equestrian and hiking use only. 

8. Letter Agreements.  The Parties agree to the terms of the letter agreements attached hereto as 

Exhibit D. 

9. Conflicts. In the event of a conflict between the Original Agreement and this Amendment, this 

Amendment shall control. 

10. Notices. Section 2.19 of the Original Agreement is hereby amended to provide the following 

Notice information for the Owner: 

Attn: Phillip W. Huffines 

8200 Douglas Avenue, Suite 300 

Dallas, Texas 75225 

E-mail: pwh@huffinescommunities.com 

214.750.1800 

 

With a copy to: 

  

  Attn: Misty Ventura 

  Shupe Ventura, PLLC 

  9406 Biscayne Blvd. 

mailto:pwh@huffinescommunities.com


Page 4 
1580.017\88914.2 

  Dallas, Texas 75218 

  E-mail: misty.ventura@svlandlaw.com 

  214.328.1101 

 

11. Authority and Enforceability.  The City represents and warrants that this Amendment has been 

approved by ordinance duly adopted by the City Council in accordance with all applicable 

public notice requirements (including, but not limited to, notices required by the Texas Open 

Meetings Act) and that the individual executing this Amendment on behalf of the City has been 

duly authorized to do so.  The Owner represents and warrants that this Amendment has been 

approved by appropriate action of the Owner, and that the individual executing this 

Amendment on behalf of Owner has been duly authorized to do so.  Each Party acknowledges 

and agrees that this Amendment is binding upon such Party and enforceable against such Party 

in accordance with its terms and conditions and that the performance by the Parties under this 

Amendment is authorized by Section 212.172 of the Texas Local Government Code. 

12. Applicable Law; Venue.  This Amendment is entered into under and pursuant to, and is to be 

construed and enforceable in accordance with, the laws of the State of Texas, and all 

obligations of the Parties are performable in Collin County.  Venue for any action to enforce 

or construe this Amendment shall be in Collin County. 

13. Non Waiver.  Any failure by a Party to insist upon strict performance by another Party of any 

material provision of this Amendment shall not be deemed a waiver thereof, and the Party shall 

have the right at any time thereafter to insist upon strict performance of any and all provisions 

of this Amendment.  No provision of this Amendment may be waived except by writing signed 

by the Party waiving such provision.  Any waiver shall be limited to the specific purposes for 

which it is given.  No waiver by any Party of any term or condition of this Amendment shall 

be deemed or construed to be a waiver of any other term or condition or subsequent waiver of 

the same term or condition. 

14. Form 1295. Submitted herewith is a completed Form 1295 generated by the Texas Ethics 

Commission’s (the "TEC") electronic filing application in accordance with the provisions of 

Section 2252.908 of the Texas Government Code and the rules promulgated by the TEC (the 

"Form 1295").  The City hereby confirms receipt of the Form 1295 from the Owner, and the 

City agrees to acknowledge such form with the TEC through its electronic filing application 

not later than the 30th day after the receipt of such form.  The Parties understand and agree 

that, with the exception of information identifying the City and the contract identification 

number, neither the City nor its consultants are responsible for the information contained in 

the Form 1295; that the information contained in the Form 1295 has been provided solely by 

the Owner; and, neither the City nor its consultants have verified such information.  

15. Counterparts.  This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which 

shall be deemed an original and constitute one and the same instrument. 

16. Exhibits. The following exhibits are attached to this Amendment and are incorporated herein 

for all purposes: 

Exhibit A Legal Description of the 88.874-Acre Tract 

mailto:misty.ventura@svlandlaw.com


Page 5 
1580.017\88914.2 

 Exhibit A-1 Legal Description of the 93.99-Acre Tract 

Exhibit B Revised Exhibit B for Undeveloped Property 

Exhibit C Revised Exhibit C for Undeveloped Property 

Exhibit D Letter Agreements 

 

Executed by Owner and the City to be effective on the Effective Date. 

[SIGNATURE PAGES TO FOLLOW] 



Page 6 
1580.017\88914.2 

ATTEST:     CITY OF LUCAS 

By:       

Name:       Jim Olk, Mayor 

Stacy Henderson, City Secretary    

 

Date:      Date:       

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY 

      

Name: Joe Gorfida   

Title:   City Attorney 

Date:       

 

 

STATE OF TEXAS   § 

§ 

COUNTY OF COLLIN  § 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of ____, 2020 by Jim Olk, Mayor of 

the City of Lucas, Texas on behalf of said City. 

        

      Notary Public, State of Texas 

  



Page 7 
1580.017\88914.2 

UNION VALLEY RANCH, L.P.,  

a Texas limited partnership 

 

     By: HC Operating, L.P., its general partner 

       

By: HC Operating, GP, LLC, its general partner 

 

By:                                                    

Phillip Huffines, Managing Director 

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

    § 

COUNTY OF DALLAS  § 

 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ____ day of ______, 2020, by Phillip 

Huffines, who is personally known or identified to me, as the Managing Director of HC Operating, 

GP, LLC, general partner of HC Operating, L.P., general partner of UNION VALLEY RANCH, 

L.P., , a Texas limited partnership, for and on behalf of said companies and partnerships. 

 

 

      ___________________________________ 

      Notary Public in and for the State of Texas 

[seal] 

 

 

 

  



Page 8 
1580.017\88914.2 

LAVON DEVELOPMENT, LLC  

a Texas limited liability company 

 

 

 

By:                                                    

Phillip Huffines, Managing Director 

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

    § 

COUNTY OF DALLAS  § 

 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of ______, 2020, by Phillip 

Huffines, who is personally known or identified to me, as the Managing Director of LAVON 

DEVELOPMENT, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, on behalf of said companies and 

partnerships. 

 

 

      ___________________________________ 

      Notary Public in and for the State of Texas 

[seal] 

 

 



Exhibit A - Page 1 
1580.017\88914.2 

EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE 88.847--ACRE TRACT 

 

 

TRACT 1 

BEING AN 88.373 ACRE TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN THE ORPHA SHELBY SURVEY, 

ABSTRACT NO. 799, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING PART OF A CALLED 

592.744 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, DESCRIBED IN DEED TO LAVON 593 LAND 

INVESTMENT PARTNERS L.P. AS RECORDED IN COUNTY CLERKS FILE NO. 

20070307000314040, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, SAID 

88.373 ACRE TRACT WITH THE BEARING BASIS BEING GRID NORTH, TEXAS STATE 

PLANE COORDINATES, NORTH CENTRAL ZONE, NAD83 (CORS96, EPOCH DATE 

2002), DETERMINED BY GPS OBSERVATIONS BETWEEN JULIAN DAY 253, 2004 AND 

JULIAN DAY 259, 2004, CALCULATED FROM DALLAS CORS ARP (PID-DF8984) AND 

DENTON CORS ARP (PID-DF8986). , BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY 

METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: 

 

BEGINNING AT A 3/4” IRON ROD FOUND IN THE SOUTH LINE OF A 136.060 ACRE 

TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN A DEED TO RCC BROCKDALE PARK ESTATES, LTD. 

AS RECORDED IN COUNTY CLERK’S FILE NO. 20070813001124770, OFFICIAL PUBLIC 

RECORDS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS; 

 

THENCE, NORTH 89 DEGREES 13 MINUTES 45 SECONDS EAST, ALONG THE SOUTH 

LINE OF SAID 136.060 ACRE TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 3007.04 FEET TO A CORPS OF 

ENGINEERS MONUMENT STAMPED “4424-26” FOUND IN THE WEST LINE OF A 

TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN A DEED TO THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA AS 

RECORDED IN VOLUME 736, PAGE 833, DEED RECORDS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS; 

 

THENCE, ALONG THE WEST LINES OF SAID UNITED STATES OF AMERICA TRACT, 

THE FOLLOWING COURSES AND DISTANCES: 

 

SOUTH 04 DEGREES 22 MINUTES 22 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 756.97 

FEET TO A CORPS OF ENGINEERS MONUMENT STAMPED “4424-25” FOUND 

FOR CORNER; 

 

NORTH 65 DEGREES 28 MINUTES 27 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 833.99 

FEET TO A 5/8" IRON ROD WITH YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED "CARTER & 

BURGESS" FOUND FOR CORNER; 

 

SOUTH 00 DEGREES 26 MINUTES 51 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 549.35 

FEET TO A CORPS OF ENGINEERS MONUMENT STAMPED “4424-23” FOUND 

FOR CORNER; 

 

SOUTH 69 DEGREES 55 MINUTES 58 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 1077.15 

FEET TO A CORPS OF ENGINEERS MONUMENT STAMPED “4424-22” FOUND 

FOR CORNER; 



Exhibit A - Page 2 
1580.017\88914.2 

 

SOUTH 50 DEGREES 39 MINUTES 17 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 1405.27 

FEET TO A CORPS OF ENGINEERS MONUMENT STAMPED “4424-21” FOUND 

FOR CORNER; 

 

THENCE, NORTH 79 DEGREES 41 MINUTES 47 SECONDS WEST, OVER AND ACROSS 

SAID LAVON 593 TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 166.84 FEET TO A POINT FOR CORNER ON 

THE WEST LINE OF SAID LAVON 593 TRACT; 

 

THENCE, NORTH 01 DEGREE 02 MINUTES 04 SECONDS WEST, ALONG THE WEST 

LINE OF SAID LAVON 593 TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 2148.49 FEET TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 88.373 GROSS ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS. 

 

 

TRACT 2 

BEING A 0.474 ACRE TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN THE MICHAEL MILLIRONS 

SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 564, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING ALL OF A 0.474 

ACRE TRACT OF LAND, DESCRIBED IN DEED TO LAVON 593 LAND INVESTMENT 

PARTNERS L.P., AS RECORDED IN COUNTY CLERKS FILE NO. 220120918001172050, 

OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, SAID 0.474 ACRE TRACT 

WITH THE BEARING BASIS BEING GRID NORTH, TEXAS STATE PLANE 

COORDINATES, NORTH CENTRAL ZONE, NAD83 (CORS96, EPOCH DATE 2002), 

DETERMINED BY GPS OBSERVATIONS BETWEEN JULIAN DAY 253, 2004 AND 

JULIAN DAY 259, 2004, CALCULATED FROM DALLAS CORS ARP (PID-DF8984) AND 

DENTON CORS ARP (PID-DF8986). , BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY 

METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: 

 

BEGINNING AT A CORPS OF ENGINEERS MONUMENT STAMPED “4424-27” FOUND 

FOR  THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 0.474 ACRE TRACT AND BEING THE A 

NORTHWESTERLY CORNER OF TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN A DEED TO THE 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA AS RECORDED IN VOLUME 736, PAGE 833, DEED 

RECORDS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS; 

 

THENCE, SOUTH 88 DEGREES 17 MINUTES 50 SECONDS WEST, ALONG THE SOUTH 

LINE OF SAID 0.474 ACRE TRACT AND THE COMMON NORTH LINE OF SAID UNITED 

STATES OF AMERICA TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 42.47 FEET TO A CORPS OF 

ENGINEERS MONUMENT STAMPED “4424-26” FOUND FOR CORNER, SAID POINT 

BEING A NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID UNITED STATES OF AMERICA TRACT AND 

THE COMMON NORTHEAST CORNER OF A 592.744 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, 

DESCRIBED IN DEED TO LAVON 593 LAND INVESTMENT PARTNERS L.P., AS 

RECORDED IN COUNTY CLERKS FILE NO. 20070307000314040, OFFICIAL PUBLIC 

RECORDS OF COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS; 

 

THENCE, SOUTH 89 DEGREES 13 MINUTES 45 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 60.10 

FEET TO A POINT FOR THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 0.474 ACRE TRACT; 

 



Exhibit A - Page 3 
1580.017\88914.2 

THENCE, ALONG THE WEST AND NORTH LINE OF SAID 0.474 ACRE TRACT AND 

OVER AND ACROSS A 136.060 ACRE TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN A DEED TO RCC 

BROCKDALE PARK ESTATES, LTD. AS RECORDED IN COUNTY CLERK’S FILE NO. 

20070813001124770, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, THE 

FOLLOWING COURSES AND DISTANCES: 

 

NORTH 03 DEGREES 42 MINUTES 10 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 138.38 

FEET TO A POINT FOR CORNER; 

 

NORTH 12 DEGREES 19 MINUTES 08 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 63.42 

FEET TO A POINT FOR CORNER; 

 

NORTH 89 DEGREES 13 MINUTES 31 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 104.59 

FEET TO A POINT FOR THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 0.474 ACRE TRACT 

AND ON THE EAST LINE OF SAID 136.060 ACRE TRACT; 

 

THENCE, SOUTH 12 DEGREES 19 MINUTES 08 SECONDS EAST, ALONG THE EAST 

LINE OF SAID 0.474 ACRE TRACT AND THE EAST LINE OF SAID 136.060 ACRE TRACT 

A DISTANCE OF 50.19 FEET TO POINT FOR CORNER, SAID POINT BEING THE 

NORTHWEST CORNER OF AFORESAID UNITED STATES OF AMERICA TRACT; 

 

THENCE, SOUTH 03 DEGREES 42 MINUTES 10 SECONDS EAST, ALONG THE EAST 

LINE OF SAID 0.474 ACRE TRACT AND THE COMMON WEST LINE OF SAID UNITED 

STATES OF AMERICA TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 150.67 FEET TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 0.474 ACRES LAND, MORE OR LESS. 



Exhibit A-1 - Page 1 
1580.017\88914.2 

EXHIBIT A-1 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE 93.99-ACRE TRACT 

 

BEING A 115.241 ACRE TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN THE LEROY FARMER SURVEY, 

ABSTRACT NO. 334 AND THE ORPHA SHELBY SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO.799, CITY OF 

WYLIE E.T.J. AND THE CITY OF LUCAS E.T.J., COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING 

ALL OF A 115.241 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, CONVEYED TO LAVON DEVELOPMENT, 

LLC., AS RECORDED IN COUNTY CLERK’S FILE NO. 20180614000736640, OFFICIAL 

PUBLIC RECORDS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS.  SAID 115.241 ACRE TRACT, WITH 

BEARING BASIS BEING GRID NORTH, TEXAS STATE PLANE COORDINATES, NORTH 

CENTRAL ZONE, NAD83 (NAD83 (2011) EPOCH 2010), DETERMINED BY GPS 

OBSERVATIONS, CALCULATED FROM DALLAS CORS ARP (PID-DF8984) AND 

DENTON CORS ARP (PID-DF8986), BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY 

METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

BEGINNING AT A 5/8” IRON ROD FOUND FOR THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 

115.241 ACRE TRACT AND A COMMON EXTERIOR ELL CORNER OF A 41.391 ACRE 

TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO OSVALDO MORALES, JR. AND ELIZABETH 

MORALES, BY DEED RECORDED IN COUNTY CLERK’S FILE NO. 20110314000273340, 

OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS.  SAID POINT BEING ON THE 

EAST LINE OF AN OLD ABANDONED ROAD; 
 

THENCE, NORTH 01 DEGREE 02 MINUTES 04 SECONDS WEST, ALONG THE WEST 

LINE OF SAID 115.241 ACRE TRACT AND ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID OLD 

ABANDONED ROAD, A DISTANCE OF 3209.80 FEET TO A 5/8” IRON ROD WITH 

YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “JACOBS” SET FOR THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF 

SAID 115.241 ACRE TRACT; 
 

THENCE, ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID 115.241 ACRE TRACT, THE FOLLOWING 

COURSES AND DISTANCES: 
 

NORTH 88 DEGREES 57 MINUTES 56 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 637.05 

FEET TO A 5/8” IRON ROD WITH YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “JACOBS” 

SET FOR CORNER; 
 

SOUTH 39 DEGREES 01 MINUTE 53 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 260.48 

FEET TO A 5/8” IRON ROD WITH YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “JACOBS” 

SET FOR CORNER; 
 

NORTH 50 DEGREES 39 MINUTES 17 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 38.01 

FEET TO A 5/8” IRON ROD WITH YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “JACOBS” 

SET FOR CORNER; 
 

SOUTH 39 DEGREES 20 MINUTES 43 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 200.00 

FEET TO A 5/8” IRON ROD WITH YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “JACOBS” 

SET FOR THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 115.241 ACRE TRACT AND BEING 

ON A COMMON NORTHWEST LINE OF A TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED AS 

TRACT NO. 4424, TO THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, BY DEED RECORDED 

IN VOLUME 736, PAGE 833, DEED RECORDS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, FROM 



Exhibit A-1 - Page 2 
1580.017\88914.2 

WHICH A CORPS OF ENGINEERS MONUMENT STAMPED “4424-22” FOUND 

BEARS NORTH 50 DEGREES 39 MINUTES 17 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 

401.48 FEET; 
 

THENCE, ALONG THE COMMON LINES OF SAID 115.241 ACRE TRACT AND SAID 

TRACT NO. 4424, THE FOLLOWING COURSES AND DISTANCES: 
 

SOUTH 50 DEGREES 39 MINUTES 17 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 1003.79 

FEET TO A CORPS OF ENGINEERS MONUMENT STAMPED "4424-21" FOUND 

FOR AN INTERIOR ELL CORNER OF SAID 115.241 ACRE TRACT AND A 

COMMON EXTERIOR ELL CORNER OF SAID TRACT NO. 4424; 
 

SOUTH 08 DEGREES 18 MINUTES 33 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 73.65 

FEET TO A CORPS OF ENGINEERS MONUMENT STAMPED "4424-20" FOUND 

FOR AN INTERIOR ELL CORNER OF SAID 115.241 ACRE TRACT AND A 

COMMON EXTERIOR ELL CORNER OF SAID TRACT NO. 4424; 
 

NORTH 88 DEGREES 26 MINUTES 57 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 2464.68 

FEET TO A CORPS OF ENGINEERS MONUMENT STAMPED "4424-19" FOUND 

FOR THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 115.241 ACRE TRACT AND A 

COMMON INTERIOR ELL CORNER OF SAID TRACT NO. 4424; 
 

SOUTH 28 DEGREES 47 MINUTES 08 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 2603.00 

FEET TO A CORPS OF ENGINEERS MONUMENT STAMPED "4424-18” FOUND 

FOR THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 115.241 AND BEING ON THE NORTH 

LINE OF A 21.432 ACRE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO LAVON 

DEVELOPMENT, LLC, AS RECORDED IN COUNTY CLERK’S FILE NO. 

20180614000736630, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, 

FROM WHICH A 5/8” IRON ROD WITH YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED 

“CARTER BURGESS” FOUND BEARS SOUTH 89 DEGREES 28 MINUTES 49 

SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 573.44 FEET; 
 

THENCE, NORTH 77 DEGREES 41 MINUTES 45 SECONDS WEST, ALONG THE SOUTH 

LINE OF SAID 115.241 AND THE COMMON NORTH LINE OF 21.432 ACRE TRACT, A 

DISTANCE OF 238.32 FEET TO A 1” IRON ROD FOUND FOR AN ANGLE POINT IN THE 

SOUTH LINE OF SAID 115.241 ACRE TRACT, THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 

21.432 ACRE TRACT, AND THE COMMON NORTHEAST CORNER OF AFORESAID 

MORALES TRACT; 
 

THENCE, SOUTH 89 DEGREES 14 MINUTES 23 SECONDS WEST, ALONG THE SOUTH 

LINE OF SAID 115.241 AND THE COMMON NORTH LINE OF SAID MORALES TRACT, 

A DISTANCE OF 1111.20 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING A 

GROSS CALCULATED AREA OF 5,019,877 SQUARE FEET, OR 115.241 ACRES OF LAND, 

MORE OR LESS. 

 

SAVE & EXCEPT 

THE FOLLOWING PLATTED LOTS LOCATED WITHIN INSPIRATION PHASE 7A, AN 

ADDITION TO COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, ACCORDING TO THE MAP OR PLAT 



Exhibit A-1 - Page 3 
1580.017\88914.2 

THEREOF RECORDED IN VOLUME 2019, PAGE 57, OF THE MAP RECORDS OF COLLIN 

COUNTY, TEXAS. 

 

LOTS 1, 4, 5, 6, 11, 12, 13, BLOCK 1;  

LOTS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, BLOCK 2;  

LOTS 5, 6, 7, 8, 10, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, BLOCK 4;  

LOTS 5, 13, 14, 15, 16, BLOCK 6;  

LOTS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 11, 12, 13, 14, BLOCK 9;  

LOTS 8, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29 30, 32, BLOCK 11;  

LOTS 1, 2, 3, 4, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, BLOCK 12;  

LOTS 1, 2, 3, 9, BLOCK 13;  

LOTS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 12, 13, 14, 15, BLOCK 14; AND  

LOTS 21, 22, 23, BLOCK 16. 

 

SAID PLATTED LOTS CONTAINING APPROXIMATELY 21.308 ACRES OF LAND 

MORE OR LESS. LEAVING A NET AREA OF 93.933 ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS. 



Exhibit B - Page 1 
1580.017\88914.2 

EXHIBIT B 

REVISED EXHIBIT B FOR UNDEVELOPED PROPERTY 

 



Exhibit C - Page 1 
1580.017\88914.2 

EXHIBIT C 

REVISED EXHIBIT C FOR UNDEVELOPED PROPERTY 

 



Exhibit C - Page 1 
1580.017\88914.2 

EXHIBIT D 

LETTER AGREEMENTS 

 

 



Exhibit C - Page 2 
1580.017\88914.2 

 
 



Exhibit C - Page 3 
1580.017\88914.2 



Exhibit C - Page 4 
1580.017\88914.2 

 
 



SO
U

TH
VI

EW

OSAGE

Osage Lane



Item No. 05  
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

August 6, 2020 
 

Requester: Lucas Volunteer Firefighter Pension Board Chairman Larry Bowman 
  Councilmember Wayne Millsap 
 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider revocation from the Texas Emergency Services Retirement System (“TESRS”) 
effective December 31, 2020.   
 
Background Information  
 
During the 86th Legislature of the State of Texas, Representative Candy Noble filed HB 2178, 
on behalf of the City of Lucas, that includes language that would allow volunteer fire 
departments to opt out of TESRS.  Chairman Bowman and Councilmember Millsap testified at 
the committee hearing for HB 2178.  
 
A competing bill, HB 3247, was also filed that provided for a number of changes to TESRS. This 
bill included language allowing fire departments to opt out of TESRS.   
 
HB 2178 did not pass during the 86th Legislature session; however, HB 3247 was passed and 
sign into law. 
 
In accordance with amended Texas Administrative Code §304.2, a participating Department may 
revoke its election to participate in the Texas Emergency Services Retirement System (TESRS) 
in a manner that protects the actuarial soundness of the pension system. The rule also protects the 
pension benefits of members of a Department that revokes its participation by fully vesting their 
accrued benefits as of the date of the Department’s revocation.  
 
Under §304.2, the governing body of a TESRS participating Department that intends to revoke 
its participation in the pension system sends a Notice of Intent to the TESRS executive director, 
the governing body of the political subdivision associated with the Department, and all current 
members of the Department.   
 

1. The Notice must be provided at least 120 days prior to the date of revocation. 
2. The Notice must state the date the renovation will occur. 
3. The notice period of 120 days may be modified by the TESRS executive director. 

 
A list of the current members of the Department who received notification shall be included as 
an attachment. 
 
Upon receipt of a Notice of Intent which meets the requirements above, TESRS will provide 
information and instructions that specify revocation requirements that must be met, including: 
 

a. Requirements for Local Board Certification of TESRS Membership, and 
b. Requirement for Payment of Revocation Charges.  



Item No. 05  
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

August 6, 2020 
 

 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Instructions from Texas Emergency Services Retirement for Departmental Revocation 

Process. 
2. Copy of Title 34. Public Finance, Part ll. TESRS, Chapter 304. Membership in the TESRS. 

34 TAC §§ 304.2 – 304.4 
3. Rudd and Wisdom letter and example of calculation of revocation charge 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
Estimate of $55,000 
 
Recommendation  
 
The Lucas Volunteer Firefighter Pension Board recommends submitting the Notice of Intent to 
the Texas Emergency Services Retirement System on or before August 31, 2020 in order to 
complete the Revocation from TESRS by December 31, 2020. 
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to submit the Notice of Intent for revocation to the Texas Emergency Services 
Retirement System on or before August 31, 2020. 
 































Item No. 06 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

August 6, 2020 
 

Requester: City Secretary Stacy Henderson  
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consideration and approval of Ordinance 2020-08-00919 calling a Bond Election to be held in 
the City of Lucas, Texas to seek voter approval of the issuance of not more than $19,190,000 of 
general obligation bonds to create a fiber optic broadband utility system; making provision for 
the conduct of a joint election; and resolving other matters incident and related to such election. 
 
Background Information  
 
Due to concerns raised by citizens about the lack of adequate and reliable internet service, the 
City Council appointed Lucas residents to form the Technology Committee which serves as an 
ad hoc committee in all matters relating to technology-related services of the City.  The 
Technology Committee provided recommendations to the City Council and City Manager on 
issues of community-wide interests relating to information technology and internet services. 
 
The City moved forward with acquiring the services of Magellan Advisors to conduct a 
broadband feasibility study which includes a conceptual network design and financial model.  
The purpose of the study is to determine if it is feasible for the City to implement and operate a 
sustainable broadband network to provide internet service to Lucas residents within city limits. 
 
The following is a timeline of the City’s efforts in researching internet solutions to date: 
 
September - October 2018 The City released the Technology & Communication Survey to the 

community to obtain feedback regarding internet service and city 
communication efforts in Lucas. 
 

November 2018 400 household responses were collected from the Technology and 
Communication Survey and results were presented to City Council. 
 

January 2019 City Council appointed members of the Technology Committee.  
Technology Committee held their first meeting and determined items 
to research and collect information regarding internet service. 
 

February - April 2019 Technology Committee explored opportunities to steer interest from 
current Internet Service Providers (ISPs) to expand and/or improve 
internet service.  The overall response from ISPs indicated there are 
no business plans to expand existing networks or rebuild 
infrastructure due to low return on investment, low density housing, 
and large residential lots. 



Item No. 06 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

August 6, 2020 
 

 
May - August 2019 The City developed the Internet Speed Test where 514 households 

reported internet speeds, service providers, and infrastructure.  
Internet speed data was used to geographically map internet speeds 
throughout Lucas. 
 

August - September 2019 Technology Committee researched municipal broadband networks 
and traveled alongside city staff to Mont Belvieu, Texas, to meet with 
the City of Mont Belvieu and discuss MB Link, the first municipally 
owned and operated broadband network in the State. 
 

October 2019 City Council approved the Technology Committee’s recommendation 
to acquire the services of a broadband consultant to conduct a 
broadband feasibility study. 
 

November 2019 City staff and Technology Committee developed key content in the 
Request for Proposal to acquire the services of a broadband 
consultant to conduct a broadband feasibility study which includes a 
conceptual network design and financial model. 
 

December 2019 The Request for Proposal was finalized and published to garner 
interest from broadband developers and consultants to conduct the 
broadband feasibility study. 
 

January - February 2020 The City received seven proposals in response to the Request for 
Proposal and the Technology Committee reviewed, scored, and 
ranked each proposal based on a set of evaluation factors.  The City 
Council approved the Technology Committee’s recommendation to 
acquire the services of Magellan Advisors to conduct the broadband 
feasibility study. 
 

March 2020 A formal contract was executed between the City and Magellan 
Advisors to conduct the broadband feasibility study. 
 

April 2020 Magellan Advisors collected data and necessary information from the 
City to develop the conceptual network design and estimate costs. 
 

May 27, 2020 Magellan Advisors held a broadband project meeting with City 
Council and Technology Committee to review the preliminary 
conceptual network design and estimated construction costs. 
 



Item No. 06 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

August 6, 2020 
 

June 4, 2020 City Council meeting with discussions regarding broadband project 
timelines, milestones, funding, and the potential bond election. 
 

June 17, 2020 Magellan Advisors held a broadband project meeting with City 
Council to review the preliminary financial model. 
 

June 18, 2020 City Council meeting to discuss the preliminary financial model, 
recommendations, funding strategies, and information from the City’s 
Financial Advisor. 
 

June 29, 2020 Magellan Advisors held a broadband project meeting with City 
Council to review the adjusted financial model. 
 

June 30, 2020 Magellan Advisors held a broadband project meeting with 
Technology Committee to provide an update on the overall project. 
 

July 2, 2020 City Council meeting with final recommendations regarding the 
adjusted financial model. 
 

July 16, 2020 City Council meeting with overview of the broadband feasibility draft 
study provided by Magellan Advisors. 
 

July 27, 2020 Magellan Advisors held a broadband project meeting with City 
Council to review the finalized broadband feasibility study. 
 

July 28, 2020 Magellan Advisors submits completed broadband feasibility study to 
the City. 
 

July 30, 2020 Budget Workshop/Special City Council meeting with discussions 
regarding the broadband project, feasibility study, and potential bond 
election date. 
 

August 6, 2020 City Council meeting to consider calling a special bond election for 
the broadband project on November 3, 2020. 

 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1.   Ordinance 2020-08-00919  
2. Fiber Project Analysis by Samco Capital will be sent out under separate attachment.  
  



Item No. 06 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

August 6, 2020 
 

Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
  
NA 
 
Motion  
 
I move that the City Council adopt Ordinance 2020-08-00919 calling a Bond Election to be held 
in the City of Lucas, Texas to seek voter approval of the issuance of not more than $19,190,000 
of general obligation bonds to create a fiber optic broadband utility system; making provision for 
the conduct of a joint election; and resolving other matters incident and related to such election. 

 

 
 



AN ORDINANCE CALLING A BOND ELECTION TO BE HELD IN THE 
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS TO SEEK VOTER APPROVAL OF THE 
ISSUANCE OF NOT MORE THAN $19,190,000 OF GENERAL 
OBLIGATION BONDS TO CREATE A FIBER OPTIC BROADBAND 
UTILITY SYSTEM; MAKING PROVISION FOR THE CONDUCT OF A 
JOINT ELECTION; AND RESOLVING OTHER MATTERS INCIDENT 
AND RELATED TO SUCH ELECTION 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

WHEREAS, the City Council (the Council) of the CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS (the City), 
located in Collin County, Texas (the County), hereby finds and determines that an election 
should be held to determine whether the Council shall be authorized to issue general obligation 
bonds of the City in the amount and for the purposes hereinafter identified (the Election); and 

WHEREAS, the City will contract with the Elections Administrator (the Administrator) 
of the County to conduct all aspects of the Election; and 

WHEREAS, the Election will be held jointly with other political subdivisions (such other 
political subdivisions, collectively, the Participants) for whom the County is also conducting 
their elections, as provided pursuant to the provisions of one or more joint election agreements or 
contracts among the City, the County, and the Participants, entered into in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 271.002, as amended, Texas Election Code, or other applicable law, 
pursuant to which the County will conduct all aspects of the Election on the City’s behalf; 

WHEREAS, the Council hereby finds and determines that the necessity to construct 
various capital improvements within the City necessitates that it is in the public interest to call 
and hold the Election at the earliest possible date to authorize the issuance of general obligation 
bonds for the purposes hereinafter identified; and 

WHEREAS, the Council hereby finds and determines that the actions hereinbefore 
described are in the best interests of the residents of the City; now, therefore, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
THAT: 

SECTION 1. The Election shall be held in the CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS on the 3rd 
day of November, 2020 (Election Day), which is a uniform election date under the Texas 
Election Code, as amended, and is not less than 78 days nor more than 90 days from the date of 
the adoption of this ordinance (the Ordinance), for the purpose of submitting the following 
proposition to the qualified voters of the City: 

Ordinance 2020-08-00919



-2- 

PROPOSITION B 

“Shall the City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas be authorized to issue and sell 
one or more series of general obligation bonds of the City in the aggregate 
principal amount of not more than $19,190,000 for the purpose of making 
permanent public improvements or other public purposes, to wit:  creation of a 
utility system by designing, acquiring, constructing, purchasing, renovating, 
enlarging, improving,  installing, and equipping fiber optic cable to provide 
broadband internet service and related facilities within the City, and the purchase 
of materials, supplies, equipment, machinery, landscaping, land, easements, 
rights-of-way, and other real property interests necessary therefor or incidental 
thereto, such bonds to mature serially or otherwise (not more than 20 years from 
their date) in accordance with law; and any issue or series of said bonds to bear 
interest at such rate or rates (fixed, floating, variable or otherwise) as may be 
determined within the discretion of the City Council, provided that such rate of 
interest shall not exceed the maximum rate per annum authorized by law at the 
time of the issuance of any issue or series of said bonds; and shall the City 
Council of the City be authorized to levy and pledge, and cause to be assessed and 
collected, annual ad valorem taxes, within the limitations prescribed by law, on all 
taxable property in said City sufficient to pay the annual interest and provide a 
sinking fund to pay the bonds at maturity and the cost of any credit agreements 
executed in connection with the bonds?” 

SECTION 2. One or more City election precincts are hereby established for the purpose 
of holding the Election, and one or more polling places are hereby designated for holding the 
Election in the City election precincts as identified in Exhibit A to this Ordinance (which is 
incorporated herein by reference for all purposes).  At least 79 days prior to Election Day, or as 
soon thereafter as is reasonably practicable, the City, acting through the Mayor, the City 
Manager, or the designee thereof, in coordination with the Administrator, or the designee 
thereof, as necessary or desirable, will appoint the Presiding Judges, Alternate Presiding Judges, 
Election Clerks, and all other election officials for the Election, together with any other 
necessary changes to election practices and procedures and can correct, modify, or change the 
Exhibits to this Ordinance based upon the final locations and times agreed upon by the 
Administrator, the City, and the Participants to the extent permitted by applicable law. 

A. The Presiding Judge shall appoint not less than two resident qualified voters of 
the County to act as clerks in order to properly conduct the Election.  To the extent required by 
the Texas Election Code, as amended, or other applicable law, the appointment of these clerks 
must include a person fluent in the Spanish language to serve as a clerk to render oral aid in the 
Spanish language to any voter desiring such aid at the polls on Election Day.  If the Presiding 
Judge appointed actually serves, the Alternate Presiding Judge shall serve as one of the clerks. 
In the absence of the Presiding Judge, the Alternate Presiding Judge shall perform the duties of 
the Presiding Judge of the election precinct. 

B. On Election Day, the polls shall be open as designated on Exhibit A. 



-3- 

The County participates in the Countywide Polling Place Program under Section 43.007, 
as amended, Texas Election Code, meaning that any City voter can vote in the Election at any 
polling place identified in Exhibit A. 

C. The main early voting location is designated in Exhibit B to this Ordinance 
(which is hereby incorporated herein by reference for all purposes).  The individual named as the 
Early Voting Clerk as designated in Exhibit B is hereby appointed as the Early Voting Clerk to 
conduct such early voting in the Election.  The Early Voting Clerk shall appoint the Deputy 
Early Voting Clerks.  This main early voting location shall remain open to permit early voting on 
the days and at the times as stated in Exhibit B.  Early voting shall commence as provided on 
Exhibit B and continue through the date set forth on Exhibit B, all as provided by the provisions 
of the Texas Election Code, as amended. 

Additionally, permanent and/or temporary branch offices for early voting by personal 
appearance may be established and maintained in accordance with the Texas Election Code.  In 
the event such permanent and/or temporary branch locations are established, information 
regarding the locations, dates, and hours of operation for early voting at these offices shall be 
determined by the Administrator, as identified in Exhibit B hereto. 

An Early Voting Ballot Board is hereby established for the purpose of processing early 
voting results.  The individual designated in Exhibit B as the Presiding Judge of the Early Voting 
Ballot Board is hereby appointed the Presiding Judge of the Early Voting Ballot Board.  The 
Presiding Judge shall appoint not less than two resident qualified voters of the City to serve as 
members of the Early Voting Ballot Board. 

SECTION 3. Electronic voting machines may be used in holding and conducting the 
Election on Election Day; provided, however, in the event the use of such electronic voting 
machines is not practicable, the Election may be conducted on Election Day by the use of paper 
ballots (except as otherwise provided in this section). Electronic voting machines or paper ballots 
may be used for early voting by personal appearance (except as otherwise provided in this 
section). Pursuant to Section 61.012, as amended, Texas Election Code, the City shall provide at 
least one accessible voting system in each polling place used in the Election.  Such voting system 
shall comply with State and federal laws establishing the requirement for voting systems that 
permit voters with physical disabilities to cast a secret ballot.  Any legally permissible voting 
method may be used for early voting and Election Day voting by personal appearance.  Certain 
early voting may be conducted by mail. 

SECTION 4: The City is authorized to utilize a Central Counting Station (the Station) as 
provided by Section 127.001, et seq., as amended, Texas Election Code.  The Administrator, or 
the designee thereof, is hereby appointed as the Manager of the Station, who will establish a 
written plan for the orderly operation of the Station in accordance with the provisions of the 
Texas Election Code.  The Council hereby authorizes the Administrator, or the designee thereof, 
to appoint the Presiding Judge of the Station, the Tabulation Supervisor, and the Programmer for 
the Station and may appoint Station clerks as needed or desirable.  The Administrator will 
publish (or cause to be published) notice and conduct testing on the automatic tabulation 
equipment relating to the Station and conduct instruction for the officials and clerks for the 
Station in accordance with the provisions of the Texas Election Code.  



-4- 

SECTION 5. The official ballot shall be prepared in accordance with the Texas Election 
Code, as amended, so as to permit voters to vote “FOR” or “AGAINST” the aforesaid 
proposition which shall appear on the ballot substantially as follows: 

PROPOSITION B 

“THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO EXCEED $19,190,000 OF CITY OF LUCAS, 
TEXAS GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS FOR A FIBER OPTIC CABLE 
UTILITY SYSTEM TO PROVIDE BROADBAND INTERNET SERVICE, 
AND THE LEVYING OF A TAX IN PAYMENT THEREOF” 

SECTION 6. All resident qualified voters of the City shall be permitted to vote at the 
Election, and on Election Day, such voters shall vote at the designated polling places.  The 
Election shall be held and conducted in accordance with the provisions of the Texas Election 
Code, as amended, Chapters 1251 and 1331, as amended, Texas Government Code, and as may 
be required by any other law.  To the extent required by law, all materials and proceedings 
relating to the Election shall be printed in both English and Spanish. 

SECTION 7. Notice of election, including a Spanish translation thereof, shall be 
published on the same day in each of two successive weeks in a newspaper of general circulation 
in the City, the first of these publications to appear in such newspaper not more than 30 days, and 
not less than 14 days, prior to Election Day. Moreover, a substantial copy of this Ordinance and 
the voter information attached as Exhibit C, including a Spanish translation thereof, shall be 
posted (i) at City Hall not less than 25 days prior to Election Day; (ii) at three additional public 
places within the City not less than 25 days prior to Election Day, (iii) in a prominent location at 
each polling place on Election Day and during early voting, and (iv) in a prominent location on 
the City’s internet website not less than 25 days prior to Election Day. A sample ballot shall be 
posted on the City’s internet website not less than 25 days prior to Election Day. 

SECTION 8. As required by and in accordance with Section 3.009(b)(5) and (7) through 
(9) of the Texas Election Code, the City, as of its fiscal year beginning October 1, 2019, had 
outstanding an aggregate principal amount of debt equal to $25,045,000; the aggregate amount 
of the interest owed on such City debt obligations, through respective maturity, totaled 
$6,892,237; and the City levied an ad valorem debt service tax rate for its outstanding debt 
obligations of $0.1187 per $100 of taxable assessed valuation. Based on the bond market 
conditions on the date of the Council’s adoption of this Ordinance, the maximum interest rate for 
any series of bonds authorized at the Election is 3.25% (expressed as a net effective interest rate 
applicable to any such series of bonds). The bonds that are the subject of this Election shall 
mature serially or otherwise overall a specified number of years (not more than 20 years from 
their date), as preserved by applicable Texas law, though the City estimates that, based on 
current bond market conditions, such bonds will amortize over a 20-year period from their 
respective date of issue.  

The foregoing estimated maximum net effective interest rate and amortization period are 
only estimates, provided for Texas statutory compliance; they do not serve as a cap on the per 
annum interest rate at which any series of bonds authorized at the Election may be sold, or the 
amortization period for bonds that are the subject of this Election. 



-5- 

SECTION 9. The Council authorizes the Mayor, the City Manager, or their respective 
designee, to negotiate and enter into one or more joint election agreements and/or similar 
contracts or agreements with the County, acting by and through the Administrator, and any 
Participants if desired or required to comply with applicable law, as permitted and in accordance 
with the provisions of the Texas Election Code, as amended.  In addition, the City authorizes the 
Mayor, the City Manager, or their respective designee of either of such parties to make such 
technical modifications to this Ordinance that are necessary for compliance with applicable 
Texas or federal law or to carry out the intent of the Council, as evidenced herein. To the extent 
that any duty or obligation of the City, in general, or any City official, in particular, is properly 
delegated to the County pursuant to a joint election agreement, then the County’s carrying out 
those duties and obligations on the City’s behalf pursuant to the terms of such joint election 
agreement shall be binding upon the City and are hereby determined by the Council to be 
evidence of the City’s compliance with the provisions of applicable Texas law concerning the 
Election relative to the same.  By incorporating all essential terms necessary for a joint election 
agreement, this Ordinance is intended to satisfy Section 271.002(d) of the Texas Election Code, 
as amended, without further action of the City Council. To the extent needed or desirable, the 
Administrator is hereby appointed joint custodian of voted ballots for the purposes of 
Section 31.096, as amended, Texas Election Code. 

SECTION 10. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, 
and such recitals are hereby made a part of this Ordinance for all purposes and are adopted as a 
part of the judgment and findings of the Council. 

SECTION 11. All ordinances and resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or 
inconsistent with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such 
conflict, and the provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matters 
ordained herein. 

SECTION 12. This Ordinance shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Texas and the United States of America. 

SECTION 13. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which 
this Ordinance is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Ordinance, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, as amended, Texas Government Code. 

SECTION 14. If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person 
or circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance and the application 
of such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and this 
Council hereby declares that this Ordinance would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision. 

SECTION 15. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 1201.028, as amended, Texas 
Government Code, this Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon adoption, notwithstanding 
any provision in the City’s Home Rule Charter to the contrary concerning a multiple reading 
requirement for the adoption of ordinances. 



-6- 

*    *    *    * 



-7- 

PASSED AND APPROVED on the 6th day of August, 2020. 

CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 

Mr. Jim Olk 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_______________________ 
Ms. Stacy Henderson 
City Secretary 

(CITY SEAL) 

[Signature Page to City of Lucas, Texas Ordinance Calling a Bond Election] 



A-1

Exhibit A 

ELECTION DAY PRECINCTS AND POLLING PLACES 

Election Day:  Tuesday, November 3, 2020 
Election Day Polling Locations open from 7 a.m. to 7 p.m. 
Presiding Judge(s) and Alternate(s):  to be named by the Administrator 

TENTATIVE 

Proposed Polling Locations Attached

*** County participates in the Countywide Polling Place program under Section 43.007, as 
amended, Texas Election Code. Registered voters will be able to cast their Election Day ballots 
at any of the Vote Centers identified above. 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.] 



B-1

Exhibit B 

EARLY VOTING 

Early voting begins Tuesday, October 13, 2020 and ends on Friday, October 30, 2020. 

Presiding Judge of the Early Voting Ballot Board:  to be named by the County Clerk. 
Voters entitled to vote an early ballot by personal appearance may do so at any Early Voting site. 

Main Early Voting Polling Place, Dates, and Times 

Permanent Early Voting Polling Places, Dates, and Times 

Early Voting By Mail 

Applications for voting by mail should be received no later than the close of business (5:00 

p.m.) on [Day], October 23, 2020. Applications should be sent to: 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.] 

Dates Times 

Dates Times 

Early Voting Clerk 
Bruce Sherbet

Collin County Elections 
2010 Redbud Blvd., Suite 102 

McKinney, Texas 75069 

See Attached 

See Attached 

Early Voting Clerk 
Bruce Sherbet

Collin County Elections 
2010 Redbud Blvd., Suite 102

McKinney, Texas 75069 
email: absenteemailballoting@collincountytx.gov



C-1

Exhibit C 

VOTER INFORMATION DOCUMENT 

City of Lucas, Texas Proposition B: 

□ FOR

□ AGAINST

principal of debt obligations to be authorized $19,190,000 
estimated interest for the debt obligations to be authorized presuming 
an interest rate of 3.25% 

$5,919,225 

estimated combined principal and interest required to pay on time and 
in full the debt obligations to be authorized amortized over 20 years 

$25,109,225 

as of the date the election was ordered, principal of all outstanding debt 
obligations 

$23,630,000 

as of the date the election was ordered, the estimated interest on all 
outstanding debt obligations 

$6,074,620 

estimated combined principal and interest required to pay on time and 
in full all outstanding debt obligations amortized over 20 years 

$29,714,620 

estimated maximum annual increase in the amount of taxes on a 
residence homestead with an appraised value of $100,000 to repay the 
debt obligations to be authorized, if approved 
This figure assumes the amortization of the City’s debt obligations, 
including outstanding debt obligations and the proposed debt 
obligation; changes in estimated future appraised values within the 
City; and the assumed interest rate on the proposed debt obligations. 

$0.00 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.] 



November 3, 2020

General Special Elections

Potential Election Day Vote Centers

Polling Place Address City

Aldridge Elementary School 720 Pleasant Valley Richardson

Allen Event Center 200 E Stacy Rd Allen

Allen ISD Service Center 1451 North Watters Allen

Anna ISD Board Conference Room 501 S Sherley Ave Anna

Armstrong Middle School 3805 Timberline Plano

Benton Staley Middle School 6927 Stadium Drive Frisco

Bentwood Trail Presbyterian  Church 6000 Bentwood Trail Dallas

Bethany Elementary School 2418 Micarta Drive Allen

Blue Ridge ISD Administration Building 318 West School Street Blue Ridge

Bowman Middle School 2501 Jupiter Road Plano

Boyd Elementary School 800 S jupiter Road Allen

Carpenter Middle School 3905 Rainier Road Plano

Carpenter Park Recreation Center 6701 Coit Road Plano

Celina ISD Administration Building 205 S. Colorado Celina

Centennial High School 6901 Coit Road Frisco

Chandler Elementary School 1000 Water Oak Drive Allen

Christ Fellowship-McKinney Campus 2801 Orchid Dr. McKinney

Christ the Servant Lutheran Church 821 S. Greenville Ave. Allen

Christ United Methodist Church 3101 Coit Road Plano

Christie Elementary School 10300 Huntington Road Frisco

Clark High School 523 Spring Creek Plano

Collin College Frisco Campus 9700 Wade Blvd. Frisco

Collin College Higher Education Center 3452 Spur 399 McKinney

Collin College McKinney Campus 2200 University McKinney

Collin College Plano Campus 2800 Spring Creek Parkway Plano

Collin College Wylie Campus 391 Country Club Road Wylie

Collin County Elections Office 2010 Redbud Blvd, Ste. 102 McKinney

Community ISD Technology and Conference Center 611 FM 1138 Nevada

Davis Library 7501 Independence Parkway Plano

Dowell Middle School 301 Ridge Road McKinney

Dr. Pepper Star Center - Champions Café 6993 Stars Ave. McKinney

Eldorado Country Club 2604 Country Club Drive McKinney

Fairview Town Hall 372 Town Place Fairview

First Baptist Church - Josephine 300 S. Main Street Josephine

First Baptist Church - Princeton 511 Jefferson St. Princeton

First Baptist Church -Branch 7011 FM 546 Princeton

First Baptist Church Farmersville - Youth Building 201 Farmersville Pkwy. Farmersville

First Baptist Church Frisco 7901 Main Street Frisco

Forman Elementary School (Plano ISD) 3600 Timberline Dr Plano

Fowler Middle School 3801 McDermott Road Plano

Note: The below list contains potential Vote Centers for the November 3, 2020 General and Special Elections.  The 

list of Vote Centers will be revised as locations are confirmed.  Eligible Collin County registered voters (with an 

effective date of registration on or before October 5, 2020) may vote at any Election Day Vote Center location. 

Revised 07/20/2020

Exhibit "A"



November 3, 2020

General Special Elections

Potential Election Day Vote Centers

Frankford Middle School (PISD) 7706 Osage Plaza Parkway Dallas

Frisco Fire Station #8 14300 Eldorado Pkwy. Frisco

Frisco Senior Center 6670 Moore Street Frisco

Gateway Prosper Campus 4331 E Prosper Trail Prosper

Gay Library 6861 W. Eldorado Parkway McKinney

George Bush Elementary School 2000 Eagle Aerie Lane St Paul

Haggar Elementary School 17820 Campbell Road Dallas

Haggard Library 2501 Coit Rd Plano

Harrington Library 1501 18th Street Plano

Heritage High School 14040 Eldorado Pkwy. Frisco

Hunt Middle School 4900 Legendary Drive Frisco

Islamic Association of Collin County 6401 Independence Pkwy. Plano

John Q. Hammons Center - Courtyard Marriott 210 East Stacy Road Allen

Josephine City Hall 201 Main Street Josephine

Kerr Elementary School 1325 Glendover Drive Allen

Lavon City Hall 120 School Road Lavon

Liberty High School 15250 Rolater Road Frisco

Light Farms Elementary School 1100 Cypress Creek Way Celina

Lovejoy ISD Administration Bldg. 259 Country Club Allen

Lowery Freshman Center 601 E Main Street Allen

Lowry Crossing City Hall 1405 S. Bridgefarmer Road Lowry Crossing

Lucas Community Center 665 Country Club Road Lucas

Maus Middle School 12175 Coit Road Frisco

McKinney Fire Station #7 861 Independence Pkwy. McKinney

McKinney Senior Recreation Center 1400 S. College McKinney

Meadows Elementary School 2800 18th Street Plano

Melissa City Hall 3411 Barker Ave. Melissa

Methodist Richardson Medical Center 2831 E President George Bush Hwy Richardson

Miller Elementary School 5651 Coventry Drive Richardson

Murphy Community Center 205 N. Murphy Road Murphy

New Hope Town Hall 121 Rockcrest Road New Hope

Old Settlers Recreation Center 1201 E. Louisiana McKinney

Parker City Hall 5700 E. Parker Road Parker

Parr Library 6200 Windhaven Pkwy. Plano

Plano ISD Administration Center 2700 W. 15th Street Plano

Plano Senior Center 401 W. 16th Street Plano

Preston Trail Community Church 8055 Indipendence Parkway Frisco

Prestonwood Church 1001 w Prosper Trail Prosper

Prosper ISD Administration Bldg. 605 E. Seventh Street Prosper

Renner-Frankford Library 6400 Frankford Road Dallas

Royse City ISD Mike McKinney Maintenance Facility 1420 FM 1777 Royse City

Sachse Community Center 3815 Sachse Road Sachse

Seis Lagos Community Services Association 222 Seis Lago Trail Wylie 

Shepton High School 5505 Plano Pkwy. Plano

Shiloh Missionary Baptist Church 1310 Avenue "I" Plano

Revised 07/20/2020

Exhibit "A"



November 3, 2020

General Special Elections

Potential Election Day Vote Centers

Exhibit "A"

Slaughter Elementary 2706 Wolford Ave McKinney

Smith Library 300 Country Club Wylie

Stinson Elementary School 4201 Greenfield Drive Richardson

Stonebridge Country Club 7003 Beacon Hill Road McKinney

Stonebridge United Methodist Church 1800 S. Stonebridge Drive McKinney

Story Elementary School 1550 Edelweiss Drive Allen

Suncreek United Methodist Church 1517 W. McDermott Drive Allen

Terry Pope Administration Building 611 North FM 1138 Nevada

The Star in Frisco 1 Cowboys Way Frisco

Tom Muehlenbeck Recreation Center 5801 W. Parker Road Plano

Toyota Stadium 9200 World Cup Way Frisco

UTD Campus-Callier Clinical Research Center 811 Synergy Park Blvd Richardson

Weston Community Center 117 Main Street Weston

Woodcreek Church 3400 E. Renner Road Richardson

Revised 07/20/2020



November 3, 2020 General Special Elections

Potential Early Voting Locations, Dates and Hours
Exhibit  "B"

City

Allen

Allen

Anna

Plano

Celina

McKinney

Plano

Frisco

McKinney

McKinney

Plano

Wylie

McKinney

Plano

McKinney

Princeton

Frisco

Frisco

McKinney

Plano

Plano

Josephine

Lavon

Allen

Lucas

McKinney

Melissa

Richardson

Murphy

New Hope

McKinney

Parker

Plano

Plano

Prosper

Dallas

Wylie

Frisco

Richardson

Note: The below list contains potential Early Voting Polling Locations for the November 3, 2020 General and 

Special Elections.  The list of Polling Locations will be revised as locations are confirmed.

Address

200 E Stacy Road

1451 North Watters

501 S Sherley Ave

Polling Place

Allen Event Center

Allen ISD Service Center

Anna ISD Board Conference Room

Collin College McKinney Campus 2200 University

Carpenter Park Recreation Center

Celina ISD Administration Building

Christ Fellowship

Christ United Methodist Church

6701 Coit Road

205 S. Colorado

2801 Orchid Dr.

Collin College Frisco Campus

3101 Coit Road

9700 Wade Blvd.

Collin College Higher Education Center 3452 Spur 399

Collin College Plano Campus 2800 Spring Creek Parkway

Collin College Wylie Campus 391 Country Club Road

2010 Redbud Blvd, Ste. 102Collin County Elections Office

Haggard Library

Davis Library 7501 Independence Parkway

Eldorado Country Club 2604 Country Club Drive

511 Jefferson St.First Baptist Church Princeton

Frisco Fire Station #8 14300 Eldorado Pkwy.

Frisco Senior Center 6670 Moore Street

Gay Library 6861 W. Eldorado Parkway

2501 Coit Rd

259 Country Club

665 Country Club Road

861 Independence Pkwy.

Harrington Library

Josephine City Hall

Lavon City Hall

Lovejoy ISD Administration Bldg.

Lucas Community Center

McKinney Fire Station #7

1501 18th Street

201 Main Street

120 School Road

3411 Barker Ave.

2831 E President George Bush Hwy

205 N. Murphy RoadMurphy Community Center

New Hope Town Hall 121 Rockcrest Road

Melissa City Hall

Methodist Richardson Medical Center 

Old Settlers Recreation Center 1201 E. Louisiana

5700 E. Parker RoadParker City Hall

Parr Library 6200 Windhaven Pkwy.

Plano ISD Administration Center 2700 W. 15th Street

Prosper ISD Administration Bldg. 605 E. Seventh Street

Renner-Frankford Library 6400 Frankford Road

300 Country Club

1 Cowboy Way

Smith Library

The Star in Frisco

UTD Campus-Callier Clinical Research Center 811 Synergy Park Blvd

1 of 2 Revised 07/20/2020



November 3, 2020 General Special Elections

Potential Early Voting Locations, Dates and Hours
Exhibit  "B"

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

October 11 October 12 October 13 October 14 October 15 October 16 October 17

Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting

8am -5pm 8am -5pm 8am -5pm 8am -5pm 7am -7pm

October 18 October 19 October 20 October 21 October 22 October 23 October 24

Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting

1pm - 6pm 7am -7pm 7am -7pm 7am -7pm 7am -7pm 7am -7pm 7am -7pm

October 25 October 26 October 27 October 28 October 29 October 30 October 31

Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting Early Voting

1pm - 6pm 7am - 7pm 7am - 7pm 7am - 7pm 7am - 7pm 7am - 7pm

Important Note: Eligible  Collin County registered voters (with an effective date of registration on or before October 5, 202) 

may vote at any early voting location. 

2 of 2 Revised 07/20/2020



A B C D E F G H I J L M N O P
FYE $11,325,000 $1,800,000 $3,470,000 $2,595,000 $19,190,000 Cumulative 

(9/30) Plant and Facilities Working Capital Network Equipment Home Equipment Total (1) Surplus / (Deficit) (5)

2021 ‐$                              ‐$                              711,839$                 (711,839)$                 ‐$                               (711,839)$                 (711,839)$                     
2022 345,501                    (345,501)                 ‐                                (345,501)                  ‐                                  (345,501)                   (1,057,340)                    
2023 368,063$                    151,956$                     407,900$                     413,894$                    1,341,813$                  315,016$                  1,119,364                (804,348)                 ‐                                1,119,364$                   315,016                    (1,341,813)                (1,026,796)                (2,084,136)                    
2024 368,063                      153,788                        407,988                        412,844                      1,342,681                   1,390,812                1,141,788                249,024                   ‐                                680,636                       929,660                    (1,342,681)                (413,021)                   (2,497,157)                    
2025 368,063                      150,538                        407,750                        416,388                      1,342,738                   2,347,108                1,204,754                1,142,353               ‐                                ‐                                    1,142,353                (1,342,738)                (200,384)                   (2,697,541)                    
2026 864,856                      152,206                        407,188                        414,525                      1,838,775                   2,880,591                1,252,760                1,627,831               ‐                                ‐                                    1,627,831                (1,838,775)                (210,944)                   (2,908,486)                    
2027 868,119                      153,713                        406,300                        412,338                      1,840,469                   3,178,478                1,291,074                1,887,405               ‐                                ‐                                    1,887,405                (1,840,469)                46,936                       (2,861,550)                    
2028 865,813                      150,138                        405,088                        414,744                      1,835,781                   3,278,498                1,324,190                1,954,309               ‐                                ‐                                    1,954,309                (1,835,781)                118,527                     (2,743,022)                    
2029 867,938                      151,481                        403,550                        416,663                      1,839,631                   3,342,938                1,356,559                1,986,379               ‐                                ‐                                    1,986,379                (1,839,631)                146,748                     (2,596,275)                    
2030 869,413                      152,663                        406,606                        ‐                                   1,428,681                   3,409,166                1,389,845                2,019,321               ‐                                ‐                                    2,019,321                (1,428,681)                590,640                     (2,005,635)                    
2031 865,319                      148,763                        404,256                        ‐                                   1,418,338                   3,440,654                1,423,019                2,017,634               ‐                                ‐                                    2,017,634                (1,418,338)                599,297                     (1,406,338)                    
2032 865,656                      149,781                        406,500                        ‐                                   1,421,938                   3,448,874                1,456,057                1,992,817               ‐                                ‐                                    1,992,817                (1,421,938)                570,879                     (835,459)                       
2033 865,344                      150,638                        ‐                                    ‐                                   1,015,981                   3,456,794                1,493,933                1,962,861               ‐                                ‐                                    1,962,861                (1,015,981)                946,880                     111,421                        
2034 869,300                      151,331                        ‐                                    ‐                                   1,020,631                   3,469,142                1,529,017                1,940,124               ‐                                ‐                                    1,940,124                (1,020,631)                919,493                     1,030,914                     
2035 867,525                      151,863                        ‐                                    ‐                                   1,019,388                   3,481,309                1,565,145                1,916,165               ‐                                ‐                                    1,916,165                (1,019,388)                896,777                     1,927,691                     
2036 865,100                      152,231                        ‐                                    ‐                                   1,017,331                   3,490,879                1,602,203                1,888,676               ‐                                ‐                                    1,888,676                (1,017,331)                871,345                     2,799,036                     
2037 866,944                      152,438                        ‐                                    ‐                                   1,019,381                   3,500,149                1,640,328                1,859,821               ‐                                ‐                                    1,859,821                (1,019,381)                840,440                     3,639,475                     
2038 867,975                      ‐                                     ‐                                    ‐                                   867,975                       3,510,547                1,679,577                1,830,970               ‐                                ‐                                    1,830,970                (867,975)                   962,995                     4,602,470                     
2039 868,194                      ‐                                     ‐                                    ‐                                   868,194                       3,520,645                1,701,332                1,819,313               ‐                                ‐                                    1,819,313                (868,194)                   951,119                     5,553,590                     
2040 867,600                      ‐                                     ‐                                    ‐                                   867,600                       3,530,292                1,742,296                1,787,997               ‐                                ‐                                    1,787,997                (867,600)                   920,397                     6,473,986                     
2041 866,194                      ‐                                     ‐                                    ‐                                   866,194                       3,539,640                1,804,200                1,735,440               ‐                                ‐                                    1,735,440                (866,194)                   869,246                     7,343,232                     
2042 868,894                      ‐                                     ‐                                    ‐                                   868,894                       3,547,560                1,848,107                1,699,453               ‐                                ‐                                    1,699,453                (868,894)                   830,559                     8,173,791                     

15,844,369                 2,273,525                    4,063,125                    2,901,394                  25,082,413                711,839                   $1,800,000
(1)   Interest calculated at an assumed rate of 3.25% for illustrative purposes only.
(2)   Revenue and expense projections from Magellan Advisors proforma contained within their Broadband and Feasibility Study as of July 2020v.5.
(3)   Capital Expenditure represents unfinanced portion of capital expenditures made prior to debt financings contemplated for February 1, 2022.
(4)   Working capital from financings (assuming it represents less than 10% of debt proceeds) to be used for operating expenditures and NOT debt service.
(5)   Total shortfall of $2,840,186 recognized over first 6 years and recovered subsequently over the following 6 years shown above.   This analysis does not consider the funding 'Reserve Fund Requirements' as outlined in Magellan's proforma analysis.

Surplus / (Deficit) 
(M+N)

City of Lucas, Texas
Fiber Project Analysis: Scenario 4 Final Magellan Recommendation

July 29, 2020

Revenues (2)
Operating Expenses 

(2)

Operating Income   

(G‐H) (2)
Capital 

Expenditures (3)
Use of Working Capital 

(4)
Available for Debt 
Service (I+J+K+L)

Less: Debt Service 
(F)



City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

August 6, 2020 

Item No. 07 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 
 
Agenda Item Request 

 

 

Executive Session:  
 

An Executive Session is not scheduled for this meeting. 
 

As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may 
convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from 
the City Attorney regarding any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting. This meeting 
is closed to the public as provided in the Texas Government Code. 

 
Background Information 

 

 

NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation 

 

 

NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact 

 

 

NA 
 
Recommendation 

 

 

NA 
 
Motion 

 

 

NA 



City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

August 6, 2020 

Item No. 08 

 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 
 
Agenda Item Request  

 

 

Reconvene from Executive Session and take any action necessary as a result of the Executive 
Session. 

 
Background Information 

 

 

NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation 

 

 

NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact 

 

 

NA 
 
Recommendation 

 

 

NA 
 
Motion 

 

 

NA 


	Agenda 
	1.  Citizen Input 
	2.  Items of Community Interest 
	3.  Consent Agenda 
	4.  Consider the request by Inspiration
	5.  Consideration revocation from the Texas Emergency Services Retirement System 
	6.  Consider approval of Ordinance 2020-08-00919 Callling a Bond Election 
	7.  Executive Session 
	8.  Reconvene from Executive Session 



